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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 45 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company has
recognised impairment on financial assets to reflect the adverse business impact and uncertainties
arising from the COVID 19 pandemic. Such estimates are based on current facts and circumstances
and may not necessarily reflect the future uncertainties and events arising from the full impact of the
COVID 19 pandemic.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Sr.No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’'s Response

Allowances for Expected
Credit Losses:

(Refer Note 6 and 45 to the
financial statements)

As at March 31, 2022, loan
assets aggregated g
254,011.89 lakhs, constituting
73.86% of the Company'’s total
assets. Significant judgement is
used in classifying these loan
assets and applying
appropriate measurement
principles. The allowance for
expected creditlosses (“ECL")
on such loan assets measured
at amortised cost is a critical
estimate involving greater level
of management judgement.

As part of our risk assessment,
we  determined that the
allowance for ECL on loan
assets (including undisbursed
commitments) has a high
degree of estimation
uncertainty, with a potential
range of reasonable outcomes
for the financial statements.

The elements of estimating
ECL which in-  volved
increased level of audit focus
are the following:

» Qualitative and quantitative
factors used instaging the loan
assets measured at amortised
cost.

e Basis used for estimating
Probabilities of Default (“PD"),

e Basis used for estimating
Loss Given Default(“LGD")

e Judgements used in
projecting economic
scenarios and probability
weights applied to reflect
future economic conditions.

Adjustments to model driven ECL
results to address emerging trends.

Principal audit procedures
performed:

We have examined the policies approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company
that articulate the objectives of managing
each portfolio and their business models.

We performed end to end process of
walkthroughs to identify the key systems,
applications and controls used in ECL
processes.

We have also verified the methodology
adopted for computation of ECL (“ECL
Model”) that addresses policies approved
by the Board of Directors, procedures and
controls for assessing and measuring
credit risk on all lending exposures
measured at amortised cost.

We have confirmed that adjustments to
the output of the ECL Model is consistent
with the documented rationaleand basis
for such adjustments and that the amount
of adjustment has been approved bythe
Board of Directors.

Our audit procedures related to the
allowance for ECL included the following,
among others:

e Tested the design and effectiveness of
in-ternal controls over the:

- Completeness and accuracy of the
Expo-sure at Default (“EAD") and the
classification thereof into stages
consistent with thedefinitions applied in
accordance with the policy approved by
the Board of Directors including the
appropriateness of the factors applied for
such staging.

- Completeness and accuracy of
information used in the estimation of the
PD for thedifferent stages depending on
the nature of the portfolio; and

- Computation of the ECL including
adjustments to the output of the ECL
Model.

Also, for samples of ECL on loan assets
tested:
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- We tested the input data from the
periodof default report used in estimating
the PD, wusing Information System
specialists to gain comfort on data integrity
and other related information;

- We evaluated reasonableness of LGD
estimates by comparing actual
recoveries postthe loan asset becoming
credit impaired with estimates of LGD.

- We evaluated the incorporation of the
applicable assumptions into the ECL
Model and tested the mathematical
accuracy and computation of the
allowances by using thesame input data
used by the Company withthe help of risk
advisory specialist.

* We also tested the adequacy of the
adjustment after stressing the inputs used
in determining the output as per the ECL
Model andensured that the adjustment was
in conformity with the amount approved by
the Board ofDirectors.

We also assessed the adequacy of disclosures
made in relation to the ECL allowance in
accordance with confirm compliance with the
provisions of Ind AS 107.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us

after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventmg
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate -,_- ing




policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expect- ed to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public dis- closure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
included in the financial statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor, who expressed an
unmodified opinion on the financial statements vide their report dated 07 June 2021.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of above matter on the comparative
financial information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure
A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, -
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: M




Vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position. (Refer Note 55 to the financial statements)

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses. (Refer Note 57 to the financial
statements)

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. (Refer Note 58 to the financial statements)

(a). The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or investin
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer foot note below note 6 to the financial
statements)

(b). The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. (Refer foot note below note 17b to the financial statements)

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain
any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. (Refer note 56 to
the financial statements)

For S N Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 000050N/N500045)

Rahul Singhal
Partner

Membership No. 096570
UDIN: 22096570AJRTOC4710

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date to the members of Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited on the financial

statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge

and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(i) (a) (B) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) Property, plant and equipment is physically verified by the Management once in a three
year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets. Physical verification was performed by the management last year,
hence, no physical verification has been performed during the current year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on

such verification.

(c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in

the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d)
of the Order are not applicable.

(e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a)
of the Order are not applicable.

(b) The Company’s working capital sanctioned limits were in excess of Rs. 500 lacs during
the year, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company. (Refer foot note to Note 18d to the financial

statements)

(iif)(a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of grant
of all loans and advances in the nature of loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
Company'’s interest. The Company has not provided any guarantee during the year.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments/receipts of the
principal amount and the interest are regular, except for below mentioned cases, wherein
the repayment(s)/receipt(s) of the principal amount and/or the interest are not regular.
The details of such cases are as follows (Refer note 49 to the financial statements):




(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Category of loan Extent of delay Amount
(Rs. In lacs) *
Loan assets having significant increase in | 30-90 Days 2126.76
credit risk
Credit impaired loan assets (Default event | More than 90 Days 2609.84
| triggered)
Total 4736.60

*Before adjustment of loan acquisition costs and related income to arrive at EIR method

(d) Inrespect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the total
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days as at the balance sheet date is given as
under. As explained to us, the Management of the Company have taken reasonable steps
for the recovery of principal/ interest amounts. (Refer note 49.1 to the financial

statements)
(Amount Rs. In lacs)
No. of Cases Principal Amount Interest Overdue* | Total Overdue*
Overdue
101 1887.60 124.14 2011.74

*Before adjustment of loan acquisition costs and related income to arrive at EIR method

(e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans which are
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and basis our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not undertaken any transactions in respect of loans, guarantees and
securities covered under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not made any
investment as referred in section 186(1) of the Act and other requirements relating to section 186 do

not apply to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year, had no unclaimed deposits at the
beginning of the year and there are no amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they become payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited with
the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which were not recorded in the books of account earlier and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are
not applicable.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender government or any government authority.

(c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were temporarily used for the
purpose other than for which the loan was sanctioned but were ultimately utilized for the stated

end-use.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) Since the Company does not have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order are not applicable.

(f) Since the Company does not have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are
not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In respect of the same,
in our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 and Section 62 of
the Act and the Rules framed there under. Further, in our opinion, the funds so raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(a) Considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of

the audit.

(b) During the year and upto the date of this report, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of
the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) with the Central Government.

(c) Considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we have taken into
consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year while determining
the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable.
Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where

applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected
with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xv) of the order are

not applicable.

(a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and such
registration has been obtained by the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
a valid Certificate of Registration from the RBI as per the RBI Act, 1934.




(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
RBI. Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xvi)(c) of the order are not applicable.

(d) The Group has no CICs which are part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, provisions of clause3 (xvii) of the order are not applicable.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year pursuant to the
requirements of the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors
(SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27,
2021, issued by the Reserve Bank of India, and no issues, objections or concerns were raised by the

outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) The Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act.
Accordingly, provision of clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company does not have any amount remaining unspent which is required to be transferred to
a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, provision of clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

For S N Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Eirm’s Registration No. 000050N/N500045)

Rahul Singhal

Partner

Membership No. 096570
UDIN: 22096570AJRTOC4710

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Oxyzo Financial Services
Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;




2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S N Dhawan & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 000050N/N500045)

Membership No. 096570
UDIN: 22096570AJRTOC4710

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022



OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 |
(All amounts in Lakhs of T unless otherwise stated) |

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
A ASSETS
1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 53,820.78 19,900,71
(b) Bank Balance other than included In (a) above 4 BGB.66 908.76
{c) Derivative financial instruments 14 23.61 -
(d) Trade Receivable 5 110.31 -
(e) Loans 6 254,011.89 135,652,45
(f) Investments 7 33,648.09 6,969,55
{g) Other financial assets 8 25.12 294.98
342,508.46 163,726.45
2 Non-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets (Met) 9 397.85 78.66
(b) Deferred tax assets (Met) 10 663.60 501.53
(c) Investment Property 11 149.92 149.92
(d) Property, plant and equipment 12 84.18 35.08
(e) Other non-financial assets 13 11573 21.29
1,411.28 786.48
TOTAL ASSETS 343,919.74 164,512.93
B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 14 94.19 -

(b) Payables
(1) Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 15 230.80 205.70
(I1) Other payables

(1) Total outstanding dues to micre and small enterprises

(ii} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 16 263.44 21.46
(c) Debt securities 17 39,131.54 32,468.10
(d) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 18 162,347.19 84,369.47
(e) Other financial liabilities 19 1,752.65 1,868.14
203,819.81 118,932.87
2 Non-financial liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 258.21 =
(b) Pravisions 21 302.31 187.19
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 22 309.67 431,22
871.19 618.41

EQUITY

{a) Equity share capital 23(a) 5,147.72 5,010.34

(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 23(b) 755,83 -
{c) Other equity 24 133,325.19 39,951.31
139,228.74 44,961.65
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 343,919.74 164,512.93

See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements 1-64

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

As per our report of even date attached
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited

For S.N. DHAWAN & CO LLP

nts
o. 000050N/N500045 Os-kM {
_ e R

Ruchi Kalra Asish Mohapatra
Partner J
Membership ho: 096570 Whaole-time director and Chief Financial Officer Director
DIN: 03103474 DIN: 06666246

le\
inki Jha

Company Secretary
M.No.: F10683
Place : Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022 Date : 26 May 2022




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

(a)

Revenue from operations

(i) Interest income
(i) Fee and commission income
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes

(b) Other income

b § Total Income (a+b)

Expenses

{a) Finance costs

(b) Impairment on financial instruments

{c) Employees benefit expenses

(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(e) Other expenses

II  Total expenses

III Profit before tax (I-II)

IV Tax expense

(a2) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax charge/(benefits)
Total tax expense

v Profit for the year (III-IV)

VI Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans
Income tax benefit/ (charge) on above
Sub total (a)

(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Mavement in cash flow hedge reserve
Income tax benefit/ (charge) on above
Sub total (b)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

VII Total comprehensive profit for the year (V+VI)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Earnings per equity share:
Basic
Diluted

As per our report of even date attached
For S.N. DHAWAN & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No: 096570

irm Registratio

0. 0D0050N/N500045

I Singhal /

Place : Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022

Lo

For the year ended

For the year ended

Nates March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
25 29,837.66 19,250.25
26 1,339.00 414.33
27 120.55 88.39
28 26.55 4.20
31,323.76 19,757.17
29 14,296.86 9,021.93
30 1,367.45 1,576.47
3 4,577.66 2,995.48
12 31.00 26.44
32 1,539.80 755.17
21,812.77 14,375.49
9,510.99 5,381.68
33 2,709.78 1,538.43
33 (132.49) (150.44)
2,577.29 1,387.99
6,933.70 3,993.69
(46.98) (1.64)
11.82 0.41
(35.16) (1.23)
14 (70.58) -
17.76 -
(52.82) -
(87.98) (1.23)
6,845.72 3,992.46
34 13,66 8.29
34 13.52 B.29
1-64
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited

s

Ruchi Kalra

Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 03103474

Pinki Jha
Company Secretary
M.No.: F10683
Place: Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022

Asish Mohapatra

Director
DIN: 06666246




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Lakhs of Z unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 9,510.99 5,381.68
Adjustments for:

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (46.98) (1.64)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31.00 26.44
MNet gain on Alternative investment funds (109.92) (88.39)
Profit on sale of mutual funds (10.63) <
Interest income on bonds (1,099,23) (233.35)
Interest income on fixed deposits (74.58) (132.03)
Interest on income tax refund % (3.56)
Prafit from sale of property, plant & equipment - (0.64)
Loss on sale of bonds/Investment property 1.74 1,04
Loss on derecognition of financial assets 290.46 -
Impairment allowance on loans 690.33 713.28
Impairment allowance on investment 6.15 8.43
Impairment on account of COVID-19 = 245.50
Loss on loans & advances written off 670.97 609.26
Employee stock options expense 677.70 106.67
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,538.00 6,632.69
- . ki P

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 25,10 31.38
Increase/(decrease) in other payables 241,98 (70.54)
Increase/(decrease) in Other financial liabilities (115.49) 876.83
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 115.12 75.08
Increase/(decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities (121.55) 332,12
(Increase)/decrease in Loans and advances (120,011.20) (47,710.11)
(Increase)/decrease in Other financial assets 268.78 342.34
(Increase)/decrease in Receivables {110.31) -
(Increase)/decrease in Other non-financial assets (94.44) (2.26)
Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes (109,264.01) (39,492.47)
Income- tax paid (2,769.76) (1,980.13)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (112,033.77) (41,472.60)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (83.44) (17.58)
Purchase of Investment property - (23.41)
Proceeds from sale of Investment property - 22.00
Investment in units of Alternative investment funds - (5,057.25)
Redemption from units of Alternative investment funds 3,167.17 2,088.39
Investment in mutual fund (32,501.,39) -
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 2,510.51 -
Investment in bonds (92,893.81) (3,802.91)
Investment in Pass through certificates (4,059.52) {3,990.36)
Redemption from Pass through certificates 2,523.09 1,882.07
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.34 17.44
Proceeds from sale of bands 94,692.07 2,002.91
Investment in Fixed deposits - (757.00)
Interest income on Income Tax refund . 3.56
Praceeds from maturity of Fixed deposits 54.63 -
Interest received on fixed deposit and security deposit 1,156.35 334.04
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (25,431.00) (7,298.10)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from debt securities 36,044.25 30,299.94
Repayments of debt securities (29,380.81) (12,360.91)
Net proceeds from cash credit and bank overdraft (3,034,233} 2,158.09
Proceeds from other borrowings 282,151.25 98,248.81
Repayments of other borrowings (201,139.19) (63,757.92)
Proceeds from issue of share capital including share premium 86,743.67 8,997.77
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 171,384.84 63,585.78
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 33,920.07 14,815.08
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,900.71 5,085.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 53,820.78 19,900.71




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equival ist of:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cash on hand 5.98 5.96

Balance with banks

-In current accounts 46,313.90 19,894,75

-In deposit accounts 7,500.00 -

Accrued interest 0.90 -

53,820.78 19,900.71
See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements 1-64

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited

U s e

Ruchi Kalra Asish Mohapatra

As per our report of even date attached
For S.N. DHAWAN & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fjrm Registration Mo, 000050N/N500045

ul Singha
Partner

Membership No: 096570 Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer Director

DIN: 03103474 DIN: 06666246

Qs

Pinki Jha
Company Secretary
M.No.: F10683

Place : Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022

Place: Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

A

Equity share capital
{1) Current reporting period

{Balance at the Changes in Equity Share 1 Ch in at the
beginning of the Capital due to prior at the beginning |equity share end of the
current reporting period errars of the current capital during |current
period |reporting period |the current reporting
5,010.34 - 5,010.34 137.38 5,147.72
{2) Previous reporting period
Balance at the Changes in Equity Share d bal Ch in I: at the
beginning of the Capital due to prior at the beginning |equity share end of the
current reparting period errors of the current capital during |current
period reporting period |the current |reporting
4,774.80 = 4,774.80 235,54 5,010.34
Instruments entirely equity in nature
(a) Compulsorily convertible preference shares
(1) Current reporting period
Balance at the Changes in Equity Share |R Changes in at the
beginning of the Capital due to prior at the beginning |equity share end of the
current reparting period errors of the current capital during [current
|period reporting period  |the current reporting
it
& = 755.83 755.83
(2) Previous reporting period
Balance at the 'Ehanges in Equity Share d bal Changes in I at the
beginning of the Capital due to prior at the beginning |equity share end of the
|eurrent reporting period errors of the current capital during |current
|period reporting period  |the current reporting
Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Other c"mprt;llcelr;sl\re Income
Reuln;:lhiumings- Retained
e Earnings-
Secuities R;;!:; u/s 45- ; Employee = than asiant Cash flow Total
Particulars premium eserve | Deemed equity | Stock Options ement of Post hedges
Bank of India cantribution Outstanding of Post i
reserve Teserves
Act, 1934 ploy
Benefit Heneft
Obligations Obligations
Balance at April 1, 2020 24,497.35 519.03 109,52 - 1,964.05 - = 27,089.95
Add: Profit for the year = = =+ = 3,993.69 - E; 3,993,69
Add [Less]: Other comprehensive income (net of tax) = = - - {1.23) - {1.23)
Total comprehensive income for the year = = = = 3,992.46 - = 3.992.46
Transfer to statutory reserve - 798.49 - = (798,49) # - -
Employee steck options - - 106.67 - - - - 106.67
Premium on issue of equity shares B.764.46 = = - = = = 8,764.46
Share issue expenses (2.23) - - - & - £ 2,23
Balance at March 31, 2021 33,259.58 1,317.52 216.19 - 5,158.02 - = 39,951.31 |
Add: Profit for the year - - - - 6,933.70 - - 6,933.70
Add [Less]: Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - = - - (35.16) (52.82) (87.58)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - = - 6,933.70 {35.16) {52.82) 6,845.72
Transfer to statutory reserve B 1,369.14 = = (1,369.14) - - -
Employee stock options - - 564.72 112.98 - = - 677.70
Securlties premium an issue of equity shares 7,919.32 - - - - - - 2,919.32
Securities premium on issue of Series A - CCPS 77.946.14 - - - - - 77,946.14
Share issue expenses (15.00) - - = - - - {15.00)
Balance at March 31, 2022 119,110.04 2,686.66 780.91 112.98 10,722.58 (35.16) (52.82)| 133,325.19

See ac ying notes

As per our report of even date attached
For S.N. DHAWAN & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm ion No. 500045
I Singhal /

Partner

Membership No: 096570

Place : Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022

part of the Ind AS financial statements
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Lo

‘Whole-time director and Chief Financial Officer

Ruch ra

DIN: 03103474

& /

Pinki Jha
Company Secretary
M.No.: F10683
Place: Gurugram
Date : 26 May 2022

Financial Services Private Limited

Asish Mohapatra

Director
DIN: 06666246




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Corporate Information

Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited (the “"Company” or “Oxyzo”) is a debt listed company
having its registered office at Shop No. G-22C (UGF) D-1 (K-84) Green Park Main, New Delhi-
110016 (India). The Company is a subsidiary of OFB Tech Private Limited and is in a business in
the financial services sector. The Company currently operates as a Systemically Important Non-
Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC - SI”) and is registered with the
Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") vide certificate no N-14.03380 dated October 18, 2018.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

2.1 Statement of compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied along with
compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Further,
the Company has complied with all the directions related to Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in
accordance with the RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods
presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on May 26, 2022.

2.2 Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period. The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities
on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind
AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly,
the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when
permitted by Ind AS specifically unless they are material in nature.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency:
These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the

Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been
rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise.

2.4 Presentation of financial statements:
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented

in the format prescribed in the Division III to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies ("NBFC"”), as amended from

time to time
:EP\ ~
{i%?@ -




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement
of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required
to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Per share data are presented in Indian Rupee to two decimal places.

2.5 Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists
reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and

other similar allowances.

(i) Interestincome:
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and for all financial
instruments (except for those classified as held for trading or those measured or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) is measured using the

effective interest method (EIR).

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending
arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial
assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial
recognition.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount
of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial
asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired
financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets
originated or purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in
determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial asset.

Penal interest charged on delayed payment is recognized on realization basis.

(ii) Fee and commission income:
Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an
integral part of EIR. The fees included in the Company’s statement of profit and
loss includes amongst others fees charged for servicing of loans, fees charged on
account of loan commitments and loan advisory fees.

Fee and commission expenses with regards to services are accounted for as the
services are received.

(iii) Net gain on fair value change:
Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair
value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is
recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit and loss. In cases
there is a net gain in aggregate, the same is recognised as “Net gains on fa val 2
changes” under revenue from operations and if there is a net loss th EN
2\ disclosed as “Net loss on fair value changes”, in the statement of profit g/




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iv) Other operational revenue:
Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental
to the business and is recognised when the right to receive the income is
established as per the terms of the contract.

2.6 Expenditures:

(i) Finance costs:
Finance costs represents interest expense recognised by applying the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities other than

those classified at FVTPL.

(ii) Other expenses:

Other expenses are recognized on accrual basis and provisions are made for all
known losses and liabilities. The Company has also entered into a shared services
arrangement for sharing of common resources and facilities with another entity.
The cost allocated to the Company under such cost sharing arrangement are
included under the respective account head, as applicable. The cost allocated to
other entity under this arrangement is reduced from concerned account head and
shown as recoverable from concerned entity.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (PPE):

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE
is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct cost related to
the acquisition of PPE and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the
assets (other than freehold land)) less their residual values over their useful lives
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, or in case of assets where the
useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined.
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated
useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the
effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/ residual value is accounted on
prospective basis.

Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to
the period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods
in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its

remaining useful life.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

2.8 Intangible assets:




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.9 Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes). Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘\CGU’) is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

2.11 Employee benefits:

(i) Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in
which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of
short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. Benefits such as
salaries, reimbursements and bonus etc., are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the services.

(i) Post-employment benefits:

(a) Defined contribution plans: The Company’s employee provident fund scheme is a
defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year when the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans: The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan that
provides for gratuity benefit to all employees. The Company makes contributions
to a fund administered by trustees and managed by insurance companies_for
amounts notified by the said insurance companies. The benefit is in the o}
lump sum payments to vested employees on resignation, retirement, or de
in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equival




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

days basic salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The present value of the obligation under
defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows
using a discount rate based on the market yield on government securities of a
maturity period equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the defined
benefit obligations at the Balance Sheet date.

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is reflected in retained earnings and the same is not

eligible to be reclassified to profit or loss.

All other defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost,
interest cost and gains or losses on settlements are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses.

(iii) Long term employee benefits:

The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term
compensated absences is measured at present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to be made by the Company and is recognised in a similar manner as in
the case of defined benefit plans vide (ii) (b) above.

(iv) Termination benefits:

2.12

4

.

LT

Ivesting period on a straight line basis, with a corresponding increase in equﬁy

Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes
are recognised as expense when the Company’s offer of the termination benefit is
accepted or when the Company recognises the related restructuring costs

whichever is earlier.
Employees Stock Option Scheme:

Equity-settled shared based payments to employees are measured at fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date in accordance with Ind AS 102, “Share based
payments”. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based transactions are set out in note 44.1 & 44.2,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments
is expected over the vesting period using the graded vesting method, based on the
Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
reviews its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in the profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments
to the "Share Option Outstanding Account” in Other Equity.

The employees of the Company have also been granted stock options in respect of the
shares of OFB Tech Private Limited, the holding company under the OfBusiness Stock
Options Plan, 2016 (*ESOP 2016 Plan’). Stock options are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments on the date of grant determined using the Black Scholes
option pricing model. The excess of fair value of underlying equity shares as of-th
date of grant of options over the exercise price of the options given to employfegﬁ e
oyve

the employee stock option plan is recognized as stock compensation cos rt
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2.13 Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the
balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(i) Financial assets
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) if these financial assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates
to sole payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and by selling financial assets. As at the reporting date the Company does not
have any financial instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(c) Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset
based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Company’s
business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, its contractual terms
should give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding (SPPI).

J@Ii.‘r}_ i
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rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has more than one business model for managing its financial
instruments which reflect instruments which reflect how the Company manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Company’s business
models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling financial assets or both.

The Company considers all relevant information available when making the
business model assessment. However, this assessment is not performed on the
basis of scenarios that the Company does not reasonably expect to occur, such as
so-called ‘worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios. The Company takes into account
all relevant evidence available such as:

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held
within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key
management personnel;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way in which
those risks are managed; and

- how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine
whether the business models have changed since the preceding period. For the
current and prior reporting period the Company has not identified a change in its
business models.

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative
gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss but transferred within equity. Debt instruments that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in profit or loss.

(e) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily de-
recognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or =
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from/th. Cassets

or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in g’} witholit \?
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangeme&;‘, and

Jord-* ?
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- either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control
of the asset.

- The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

(f) Servicing of Assets/Liabilities

- The Company transfers loans through securitisation and direct assignment
transactions. The transferred loans are derecognised and gains/losses are
accounted for, only if the Company transfers substantially all its risks and
rewards specified in the underlying assigned loan contracts. In accordance
with the Ind AS 109, on derecognition of a financial asset under assigned
transactions for a fee, the Company recognises the fair value of future service
fee income over service obligations cost on net basis as service fee income
in the statement of profit and loss and, correspondingly creates a service
asset in balance sheet.

- The Company recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for
servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate
the Compensate the Company adequately for performing the servicing
activities, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation is recognised at its
fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing activities, a servicing asset is recognised.
Corresponding amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(g) Transfer of Loan Exposure

Transfer of a loan exposure results in immediate separation from the risks
and rewards associated with such loans to the extent that the economic
interest has been transferred. The transferee gets an unfettered right to
transfer or otherwise dispose of such loans free of any restraining condition
to the extent of economic interest transferred to them. Profit or loss on such
loans is recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period in which
such loans have been transferred.

(ii) Financial Liabilities:

(a) Financial liabilities, including derivatives, which are designated for
measurement at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value.

All other financial liabilities including loans and borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

(b) A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation expires or is
discharged or cancelled.

(iii) Instruments Entirely Equity in nature
The classification of a financial instruments or its component parts, on initial
recognition as a financial liability, a financial asset or an equity instrument,
is done in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement

and the definitions of a financial liability, a financial asset and an equi
instrument. An instrument is classified as an equity instrumen Q.E.'é*&
| '98
-~
Lt

instrument entirely equity in nature when the said instrument ha ﬂ*
financial instrument or contract that has: =
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e total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in
the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the entity (excluding any
effects of such instrument or contract) and

o the effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the

instrument holders.

Instruments entirely equity in nature, are presented as a separate line item
on the face of the Balance Sheet under ‘Equity’ after ‘Equity Share Capital’
but before ‘Other Equity’.

(iv) Equity Instruments
An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the face value and proceeds
received in excess of the face value are recognised as securities premium.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
observable market data to the extent possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments, at fair value
on each reporting date. In addition, the fair value of financial instruments measured
at amortized cost and FVTPL is disclosed in Note 43.

Impairment:

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

- Loans and advances to customers;

- Debt investment securities;

- Trade and other receivable;

- Irrevocable loan commitments issued; and
- Financial guarantee contracts issued.
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Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-
impaired financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit
impairment includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event-instead, the combined effect
of several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are
subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase
in credit risk the Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining
maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for
the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was
first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative
measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in the Probability of Default will be more
significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial
instrument with a higher PD.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default
is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss
allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the
probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the
identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

- The borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to

the Company; or
- The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of
different types of assets.

When assessing if the borrowers is unlikely to pay its credit obligations, the Company

takes into account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information

assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate ler@ a

N, qualitative indicator used is the admittance of bankruptcy petition by Qaﬁag»\
Company Law Tribunal. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status/apd non-
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The Company uses a variety of sources of information to assess default which are
either developed internally or obtained from external sources. The definition of default
is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless information becomes available
that demonstrates that another default definition is more appropriate for a particular
financial instrument.

Expected credit loss model

Basis the above-defined criteria, the Company considering the short-term nature of
the majority of underlying portfolio of financial assets, calculates ECL on a collective
basis as per the ECL model.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default (‘EAD’), probability of
default ('"PD’) and loss given default (‘LGD’). Accordingly, the financial assets have
been segmented into three stages based on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect
the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial asset. The Company categories
financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days past due (‘DPD’)

status as under:

- Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due

- Stage 2: Significant increase in credit risk, i.e. 31 to 90 days past due
- Stage 3: Impaired assets, i.e. more than 90 days past due

LGD estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. PD is defined as
the probability of whether the borrower will default on their obligation in the future.
For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a
lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD. EAD
represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying
amount in case of the financial assets held by the Company.

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all
characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this,
qualitative adjustments or overlays are made as temporary adjustments. The Company
regularly reviews its models in the context of actual loss experience and make
adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet:

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as

follows:
- for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross

carrying amount of the assets;
- for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in

Balance Sheet as the carrying amount is at fair value.

Write off:

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when, as at the reporting date,
financial asset is overdue for 12 months or more and the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or source of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instru
statement of profit and loss.
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2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rate between the transaction
date and the date of settlement of any monetary items are taken to the statement of
profit and loss. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the Balance Sheet
and resultant gain/ loss is taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held include foreign
exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate
swaps. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date of a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each
balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company designates certain
derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). A
derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a
derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability.

Hedge accounting
The Company makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest

rate and foreign currency. In order to manage particular risks, the Company applies
hedge accounting for transactions that meet specific criteria. At the inception of a
hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the Company would assess the
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine
that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.

Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is

attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as

all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable

forecast transaction and could affect profit and loss. For designated and qualifying cash

flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging

instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge

reserve), The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is

recognised immediately in Finance Cost in the statement of profit and loss. Whe m
€
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2.20

2.21

2.22

ﬁ, (iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

expense line of the statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires,
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in OCI at that time
remains in OCI and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately
transferred to the statement of profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits,
earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on
repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant
risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest
method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs. Borrowing costs net of any investment income from
the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation:

Current Tax:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and
tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
and based on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to
the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised only when:

(i) there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;-an
(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits v ﬂ"

required to settle the obligation; and
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2.24

2.25

2.26

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate

of the amount cannot be made.
Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax for
the year, is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Operating Cycle:

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time
between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
Management to make estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and
expenses for the year, and the accompanying disclosures including disclosure of
contingent liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a
periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in
which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
a) Business model assessment: Classification of financial assets depends on
assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assess ,\ﬂn

whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of
and interest (*SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessmen il

RO
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b)

d)

judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the
assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of
the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’'s continuous assessment of
whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those

assets. (Refer note no.45).

Impairment of financial assets: The Company establishes criteria for determining
whether credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition, determines methodology for incorporating forward looking information
into measurement of expected credit loss ("ECL’) and selection of models used to
measure ECL. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more

detail in Note 45.

Fair value of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method: The Company’s EIR methodology, recognizes
interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate
of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken
and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty
interest and charges).

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The Company has recognized deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) and concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable
using the estimated future taxable income based on the experience and future
projections. The Company is expected to generate adequate taxable income for
liquidating these assets in due course of time.

Other estimates: These include contingent liabilities and useful lives of tangible
assets.
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3 |Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Cash on hand 5.98 5.96
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 46,313.90 19,894.75
- in deposit accounts 7,500.00 -
Accrued interest on deposits with bank 0.80 =
Total 53,820.78 19,900.71
4 |Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Deposits with bank held as margin money against borrowings™* 825.37 8B0.00
Accrued interest on deposits with bank 43.29 28.76
Total 868.66 908.76
*Deposits marked as lien with banks against borrowings
5 |Trade Receivable As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Trade Receivables Considered Good - Secured = =
Trade Receivables Considered Good - Unsecured (Refer Note-5a) 110.31 -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables- credit impaired 5 =
110.31 -
5a Trade receivable aging schedule for the year ending March 31, 2022 summaried as below:
Praticulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Less than & 6 months - 1 |1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months years years
(1) Undisputed trade recelvables - considered good 110.31 - - 110.31
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - 5 i
increase in credit risk
(lii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - = &
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - considered good - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - B - -
increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - = -
6 [(Loans As at As at

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

At amortised cost
(A) Loans

(i) Term Loans 38,147.49 15,068.76
(ii} Loan against property (LAP) and machinery finance 9,148.52 4,908.68
(iii) Working capital demand loan 9,330.29 -
(iv) Purchase finance 200,911.35 118,237.80
(v) Others (Staff Loans) B.45 8.50
(vi) Interest accrued on loans 306.90 184,75
Total (A) - Gross 257,853.00 138,408.49
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,063.13 2,372.80
Less: Revenue received in advance 777.98 383.24
Total (A) - Net 254,011.89 135,652.45
(B)

(i) Secured by tangible assets (includes advances against book debts)* 54,891.19 10,226.34
(ii) Covered by bank guarantee 140,275.50 94,986.63
{ili} Unsecured 62,686.31 33,195.52
Total (B) - Gross 257,853.00 138,408.49
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,063.13 2,372.80
Less: Revenue received in advance 777.98 383.24
Total (B) - Net 254,011.89 135,652.45
(C) Loans in India**

(i) Public sector = =
(ii} Others 257,853.00 138,408.49
Total (C) - Gross 257,853.00 138,408.49
Less: Impairment loss allowance 3,063.13 2,372.80
Less: Revenue received in advance 777.98 383.24
Total (C) = Net 254,011.89 135,652.45

= Based on the net book value of the tangible assets provided as security,

*=* The Company has not granted loans to any party outside India

The net carrying amount of loans is considered a reasonable approximation of their fair value,
Refer note 45 on credit risk
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Type of Borrower (Refer note 39)

Amount of loans or advance
in the nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage of total loans and advances
in the nature of loans

Promoters
Directors
KMPs

Related Parties

0.17%

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013}, either

severally or jointly with any other person that are:
(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries") with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall;

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Investments
Particulars Azt Az at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Investments at amortised Cost:
Investment in bonds
MAS Financial Services Limited = 1,800.00
Accrued interest on bonds - 0.87
Investment in pass through certificates (PTC)
Northern Ar; 2020 SBL Mihira 27.59 632.26
Vivriti Anubis 07 2020 ) 327.51 772.20
Northern Arc 2020 SBL Birsa 117.66 703.83
MNorthern Arc 2021 SBL Chicago 3,171,95 -
Accrued interest on PTC 16.45 11.57
Investments at fair value through profit and loss:
Investment in Alternative investment funds
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund B 3,057.25
Investment in Mutual funds
SBI Overnight Fund Direct Growth 15,000.81 -
UTI Mutual Fund 5,000.22 =
Axis Bank Over Night Fund 10,000.48 -
Total 33,662.67 6,977.98
(i) Investment outside India = -
(ii) Investment in India 33,662.67 6,977.98
Total 33,662.67 6,977.98
Less: Impairment loss allowance on pass through certificates 14.58 8.43
Total 33,648.09 6,969.55
Other financial assets Az at fis at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Margin money against borrowings 20.83 179.17
Interest accrued on margin maney against borrowings 0.14 1.22
Other recoverable from related party (Refer note no.39) 0.86 114,59
Other financial assets 3.29 =
Total 25.12 294.98
Current tax assets (Net) Asdb As 2t
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Current tax assets 397.85 78.66
Total 397.85 78.66
Deferred tax assets pigolio Asay
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity 52.92 34.38
Provision for varibale pay 5.31 -
Provision for compensated absences 22.39 12.73
Impairment on financial instruments 499.05 466.37
Deferred processing fee on loan assets 195.80 96.45
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 17.76 £
793.23 609,93
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 1.50 0.19
Fair value changes in Investment 0.76 -
Prepaid Expenses 21.63 -
Unamortised processing fees on borrowings 105.74 108.21
129.63 108.40
501.53

Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) (net)
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Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences for the year ended 31 March 2022 are summarized as follows:
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Deferred tax assets /f(Liabilities) As at Recognized in Recc 1in As at
April 1, 2021 profit or loss other March 31,2022
comprehensive
income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity 34.38 6.72 11.82 52.92
Provision for Variable pay = 5.31 - 5.31
Provision for compensated absences 12,73 9.66 - 22.38
Impairment on financial instruments 466.37 32.68 L 499.05
Deferred processing fee on loan assets 96.45 99.35 - 195.80
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - - 17.76 17.76
609.93 153.72 29.58 793.23
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 0.19 1.31 - 1.50
Fair value change in investment = 0.76 - 0.76
Prepaid Expenses - 21.63 - 21.63
Unamartised processing fees on borrawings 108,21 (2.47) - 105,74
108.40 21.23 = 129.63
Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) (net) 501,53 132.49 29.58 663.60
Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences for the year ended 31 March 2021 are summarized as follows:
As at| Recognized in Recognized in As at

Deferred tax assets /(Liabilities)

April 1, 2020 profit or loss other March 31,2021
comprehensive
income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity 19.65 14.32 0.41 34.38
Provision for compensated absences 8.57 4.16 - 12,73
Impairment on financial instruments 303.92 162.45 - 466.37
Deferred processing fee on loan assets 69.57 26.88 = 96,45
401.71 207.81 0.41 609.93
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment 2.82 (2,63) - 0.19
Unamartised processing fees on borrowings 48.21 60.00 - 108.21
51.03 57.37 - 108.40
Deferred tax assets /(liabilities) (net 350.68 150.44 0.41 501.53
Investment property
Particulars Building Land-freehold Total
Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at March 31, 2020 - 149,92 149.92
Additions 23.41 - 23.41
Disposals (23.41) - (23.41)
As at March 31, 2021 - 149.92 149,92
Additions = # -
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2022 - 149,92 149.92
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 = = -
Charge for the year 0.37 - 0.37
Adjustments (0.37) - (0,37)
As at March 31, 2021 = - -
Charge for the year - - -
Adjustments = B =
As at March 31, 2022 - - -
Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 - 149.92 149.92
As at March 31, 2022 - 149.92 149.92

(1) As at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021, the fair value (Level 3) of property is 7162.42 Lakh and #158.20 Lakh respectively, These valuations are based on the valuation

by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017,

(ii) The freehold land situated at Mappedu Village, Tiruvallur taluk and district, Chennai, Tamil Nadu is under lien by way of mortgage to M/s Catalyst Trusteeship Limited and M/s

Vistara ITCL Trustees ("Debenture Trustees") by way of charge thereon.
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15.1

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and their carrying amounts are as follows:

Particulars Computers Total
Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at March 31, 2020 86.62 86.62
Additions 17.58 17.58
Disposals {32,53) {32.53)
As at March 31, 2021 71.67 71.67
Additions 83,44 83.44
Disposals (10.45) (10.45)
As at March 31, 2022 144.66 144.66
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2020 26.25 26.25
Additions 26.07 26.07
Disposals (15.73) (15.73)
As at March 31, 2021 36.59 36.59
Additions 31.00 31.00
Disposals (7.11) (7.11)
As at March 31, 2022 60.48 60.48
Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 35.08 35.08
As at March 31, 2022 84.18 84.18
As at As at

Other non-financial assets

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Prepaid expenses 85.94 12.70
Advance to employees 1.05 0.73
Other advances 28.74 7.86
Total 115.73 21,29
Derivative financial Instruments As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Motional Fair Value - |Fair Value - Notional Fair Value - Fair Value -
Amounts Assets Liabilities A t: Assets Liabilities

Part I
(i) Currency derivatives:
~Currency swaps 4,752.48 o 94.19 = = -
Subtotal (i) 4,752.48 - 94.19 - - e
(ii) Interest rate derivatives
Forward Rate Agreements and interest rate swaps 4,752.48 23.61 - - - P

btotal (ii) 4,752.4¢ 23.6 = = = -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i)+(ii) 9‘504.91 E.GJ 94.19 - - =
Part II
Included In above (Part 1) are derivatives held for hedging and
risk management purposes as follows:
(1) Fair value hedging:
-Currency derivatives - - - - 5 -
-Interest Rate derivatives - - - - - .
Subtotal (i) - - - - = =
(i) Cash flow hedging:
-Currency derivatives 4,752.48 - 94.19 - - -
-Interest rate derivatives 4,752.48 23.61 - - - =
Subtotal (ii) 9,504,96 23.61 94.19 - - -
Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i+ii) 9,504.96 23.61 94.19 o - -

As at| As at

Trade payables

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 230.80 205.70
Total 230.80 205.70
Trade Payable aging schedule for the year ending March 31, 2022 summaried as below:
Praticulars eriods from due date of payments

Less than 1 More than 3 Total

year years
(i) MSME - o - - -
{ii) Others 205,43 7.44 10.13 = 223.00
(ili} Disputed dues - MSME - E 3 - -
(iv}) Disputed dues - Others 0.06 0.05 7.69 = 7.80
Total 205.49 7.49 17.82 - 230.80
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15.2 Trade Payable aging schedule for the year ending March 31, 2021 summaried as below:

Praticulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date

of payments

16

17

Less than 1 |1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
(i) MSME - = - = -
(i) Others 185.51 20.19 - - 205.70
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME = # i - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others = 5 = - -
Total 185.51 20.19 - - 205.70
Other payables As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Employee related payable 51.90 21.46
Payable to OFB Tech Pvt. Ltd. (Holding Company) (Refer note 39) 211.54 -
Total 263.44 21.46
Debt securities As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
At amortised cost
Unsecured
Commercial paper (Refer note 17a) 6,328.58 -
Accrued interest on commercial paper 61.19 -
6,389.77 -
Secured
Debentures (Refer note 17b) 31,446.53 31,200.00
Accrued interest on debentures 1,426.45 1,460.79
32,872,98 32,660,79
Less: Unamortised processing fees on borrowings 131.21 192.59
32,741.77 32,468.10
Total 39,131.54 32,468.10
Debt securities in India 39,131.54 32,468.10
Debt securities outside India = -
Total 39,131.54 32,468.10
17a Commercial papers (Gross): Unsecured
Repayment Terms Tenure Interest Range Interest Range As at As at
(At March (At March 31,2021) March 31,2022 March 31,2021
31,2022)
Bullet Upto 1 year |6.95% to B.90% - 6,500.00 -
Total 6,500.00 -
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Face Value 6,500.00 g
Unamartised Discount on Commercial Paper 110.23 -
Total 6,389.77 -
17b Security and terms of repayment for redeemable non-convertible debenture (NCD)*
Tenure Interest Range Interest Range As at As at

Repayment Terms

(At March (At March 31,2021)| March 31,2022 March 31,2021
31,2022)
Listed NCD:
6,200 NCD's of #1,00,000/- each Upto 2 years [10.99% to 14.95% [12.62% to 14.05% 6,200.00 5,800.00
(Previous year 5,800 NCD's of $100,000/- each)
864 NCD's of #1,000,000/- each Upto 3 years |(8.65% to 9.00% 9.92% to 12.65% 8,640.00 4,750.00
(Previous year 475 NCD's of 1,000,000/- each)
500 NCD's of ¥250,000/- each# Upto 1 year |[10.00% 10.00% 1,250.00 5,000.00
(Previous year 500 NCD's of 71,000,000/~ each)
100 NCD's of ¥250,000/- each# Upto 1 year 10.00% 10.00% 250.00 1,000.00
(Previous year 100 NCD's of 71,000,000/- each)
100 NCD's of ¥400,000/- each# Upto 1 year [10.00% 10.00% 400.00 1,000.00
(Previous year 100 NCD's of #1,000,000/- each)
480 NCD's of #750,000/- each Upto 2 years |9.30% - 3,600.00 -
(Previous year Nil)
5,000 NCD's of #4,000/- each# Upto 1 year |[12.71% 12.71% 200.00 600.00
{Previous year 5,000 NCD's of ¥12,000/- each)
20,540.00 18,150.00
Unlisted NCD:
519 NCD's of 1,000,000/- each Upto 4 years |[11.24% 10.20% to 13.80% 5,190.00 6,000.00
{Previous year 600 NCD's of ¥1,000,000/- each)
2,500 NCD's of 33,328/~ each# Upto 1 years [11.20% 11.20% 833.20 2,500.00
(Previous year 2,500 NCD's of 100,000/- each)
2,825 NCD's of 766,666,67/- each# Upto 2 years [12.29% 12.29% 1,883.33 2,825.00
(Previous year 2,825 NCD's of ¥100,000/- each)
30,000 NCD's of ¥10,000/- each Upto 2 years |[9.50% - 3,000.00 =
(Previous year Nil)
Current year NIL Upto 3 years |- 11.50% - 1,725.00
(Previous year 230 NCD's of ¥750,000/- each)
10,906.53 13,050.00
/
31,446.53 [\ VIT 5 .31,200.00
\’ F
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18a

18b

18c

18d

*Non-convertible redeemable debentures of ¥ 31,446.53 Lakhs (previous year 2 31,200.00 Lakhs) are secured by first and exclusive charge over the specific identified book debts/
loan receivables of the Company and by first paripassu charge on the immovable property being freehold land situated at Mappedu Village, Tiruvallur taluk and district, Chennai,
Tamil Nadu. Non-convertible redeemable debentures of ¥ 13,173.33 lakhs (previous year ¥ 31,200.00 Lakhs) are secured by corporate guarantee also from the Holding Company,

QOFB Tech Private Limited.

#Non-convertible redeemable debentures ("NCD") are redeemed during the year by reducing the face value of the NCD

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

otherwise) that the Company shall;
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Borrowings (other than debt securities) As at| As at
March 31,2022| March 31,2021
At amortised cost
Secured
External commercial borrowings {Refer note 18a) 4,752.33 -
Term loans from banks (Refer note 18b) 106,146,732 40,316.62
Term loans from financial institutions (Refer note 18¢) 50,269.44 40,055.85
Accrued interest on term loans 533.42 265,75
161,701.92 80,638.22
Loans repayable on demand (secured)
Cash credit and bank overdraft (Refer note 18d) 934.20 3,968.53
934.20 3,968.53
162,636.12 84,606.75
Less: Unamortised processing fees on borrowings 288,93 237.28
162,347.19 84,369.47
Borrowings (other than debt securities) in India 157,594.86 84,369.47
Borrowings (other than debt securities) outside India 4,752.33 -
Total 162,347.19 84,369.47
Security and terms of repayment of External commercail borrowings in foreign currency ~
Repayment Terms Tenure Interest Range Interest Range As at As at
(At March (At March 31,2021) March 31,2022 March 31,2021
31,2022)
Bullet Upto 5 Years |9.99% - 4,752.33 -
Total 4,752.33 -

“ The company had availed total External Commercial Borrowing (ECBs) of USD 6.5 million for financing prospective borrowers as per the ECB guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India ("RBI"} from time to time. The borrowing had a maturity of five years. In terms of RBI guidelines, borrowings have been swapped into rupees and fully hedged for the entire

maturity by way of cross currency swaps.

Security and terms of repayment for secured term loans from banks##

Repayment Terms Tenure Interest Range Interest Range As at As at|
(At March (At March 31,2021)| March 31,2022 March 31,2021
31,2022)

Bullet Upto 1 Years |7.00% to 9.25% 10.97% to 12.47% 42,000.00 18,362.50

Quarterly Upto 3 Years |6.85% to 9.25% 11.98% to 12.94% 9,250.00 500.00

Manthly Upto 4 Years |8.05% to 13.00% 11.50% to 13.53% 54,896.73 21,454.12

Total 106,146.73 40,316.62

~# Term loans from bank are secured by first and exclusive charge on specific identified receivables of the Company. Term loans from banks of ¥ 14,308.72 lakhs (previous year

40,316.62 lakhs) are secured by corporate guarantee also by holding Company.

Security and terms of repayment for secured term loans from financial institutions#

Repayment Terms Tenure Interest Range Interest Range As at As at
(At March (At March 31,2021) March 31,2022| March 31,2021
31,2022)

Bullet Upto 1 Years |B8.50% to 8.90% 11,35% to 13.00% 2,500.00 2,500.00

Half yearly Upto 1 Years |12.00% 12.00% 833.33 2,500.00

Quarterly Upto 2 Years |9.10% to 11.60% [11.50% to 12.50% 7,375.00 3,375.00

Maonthly Upto 3 Years |8.70% to 12.25% [10.60% to 13.25% 39,561.11 31,680.85

Total 50,269.44 40,055.85

# Term loans from financial institutions are secured by first and exclusive charge on specific identified receivables of the Company. Term loans from financial institutions of #
14,987.47 lakhs (previous year ¥ 40,055.85 lakhs) are secured by corporate guarantee also by holding Company.

Cash credit and bank overdraft)~~~

Tenure Interest Range

Security and terms of repayment for secured Loans repayable on demand
Repayment Terms Interest Range As at As at
(At March (At March 31,2021) March 31,2022 March 31,2021
31,2022)
Bullet Upto 1 year  |9.25% 9.25% to 11.95% 934.20 3,968.53
934.20 3,968.53

A~~~ Cash credit and bank overdraft are secured by first and exclusive charge on specific identified receivables of the Company and corporate guarantee by halding Company.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The Company's working capital sanctioned limits were in excess of Rs, 500 lakhs during the year, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of
returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company.

ssets. The quarterly
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Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Margin money from borrowers 963.52 1,281.02
Interest accrued but not due on margin money 17.94 32.60
Loans pending disbursement (Refer note 39) 769,90 361,77
Others 1.29 192.75
Total 1,752.65 1,868.14
Current tax liabilities As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Provision for Tax [net of advance tax and tax deducted at source ¥ 2,450.57 Lakhs (Previous year net of advance tax and tax deducted at 259.21 -
source ¥ 1,617.09 Lakhs)]
Total 259.21 -
Provisions As at As at

March 31,2022

March 31,2021

Provision for employee benefits:

Provision for gratuity [Refer note 36(b)] 213.34 136.60
Provision for compensated absences 88.97 50.59
Total 302.31 187.19
Other non-financial liabilities As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Statutory remittances 309.67 431.22
(Tax deducted at source, Employees provident fund, Goods and services tax, Labour welfare fund and Employee state insurance)
Total 309.67 431.22
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(a) Equity Share Capital

(i) Share capital authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares (¥ in lakhs) No. of shares (% in lakhs)

Authorised Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs,10 each 73,381,715 7,338.17 52,013,744 5,201.37

Total 73,381,715 7,338.17 52,013,744 5,201.37

Issued, subscribed and paid up Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 51,477,209 5,147.72 50,103,388 5,010.34
51,477,209 5,147.72 50,103,388 5,010.34

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and ranks pari passu. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares (¥ in lakhs) No. of shares (% in lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 50,103,388 5,010.34 47,747,970 4,774.80

Issued during the year:-
OFB Tech Pvt Ltd

- On right issue basis 1,080,263 108.03 2,355,418 235.54

- On private placement basis 293,528 29.35 - -

Norwest Capital, LLC

- On private placement basis 10 0.00 - -

Creation Investments Social Ventures Fund, LP

- On private placement basis 10 0.00 = -

Internet Fund VII Pte, Ltd.

- On private placement basis 10 0.00 - -
Outstanding at the end of the period® 51,477,209 5,147.72 50,103,388 5,010.34

~ Till last year Mr. Ruchi Kalra was holding 10 shares as nominee shareholder of OFB Tech Private Limited, which has now been
transferrred in her name as beneficiary shareholder.

(iv) Shareholding of promoters
The details of the shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022 are as follows :

Promoter name No.of shares 1o total ﬂ'fochange
shares during the year

OFB Tech Private Limited (holding company) 51,477,159 100.00 2.74
Ruchi Kalra 20 0.00 100.00
(v) Equity shares in the Company held by the holding company
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
OFB Tech Private Limited (holding company) 51,477,159 100.00 50,103,388 100.00

(vi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares 9% of holding No. of shares % of holding

OFB Tech Private Limited (holding company) 51,477,159 100.00 50,103,388 100.00

P

%
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(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
(i) Cumulative, mandatorily and compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCPS")

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares (Z in lakhs) No. of shares (2 in lakhs)

Authorised

-Series A cumulative, mandatory and fully convertible preference 14,382,874 1,438.29 - -

shares of Rs. 10 each

-Series A optionally convertible and redeemable preference shares 2,935,263 293.53 - -

of Rs. 10 each

Total 17,318,137 1,731.82 # -

Issued, subscribed and paid up
-Series A cumulative, mandatory and fully convertible preference

shares of Rs. 10 each 7,558,340 755.83 - -

Total 7,558,340 755.83 - -

(ii) Terms/rights attached to cumulative, mandatorily and compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCPS")

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has issued 7,558,340 Series A CCPS of Rs. 10 each on private placement basis
between March 29, 2022 and March 31, 2022 with voting rights pari passu with the equity shares of the Company carrying preferential
dividend @ 0.0001% per annum in such time preference shares are outstanding. Series A CCPS are initially convertable into equity
shares of Rs. 10 each at such conversion price that one Series A CCPS shall convert into one equity share upon earlier of the following:

(a) in connection with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus (or equivalent document, by whatever name called) by the Company with
the competent authority or such later date as may be permitted under Applicable Laws, or

(b) at any time at the option of preference share holders, or

(c) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the date of issuuance of preference shares and the Series A conversion price shall be
subject to adjustment from time to time.

(iii) Reconciliation of cumulative, mandatorily and compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCPS")

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares (% in lakhs) No. of shares (% in lakhs)

At the beginning of the year - = -
Issued during the year

Particulars

-Series A cumulative, mandatory and fully convertible preference 7,558,340 755.83 - -
shares of Rs. 10 each*
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,558,340 755.83 - -

* During the year ended 31 March 2022, 7,558,340 Series A CCPS of Rs, 10 each fully paid up, issued at premium of Rs. 1,031.26 per
share.

(iv) Details of shareholders holding of cumulative, mandatorily and compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCPS")

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding_
Norwest Capital, LLC 2,788,515 36.89 -
Creation Investments Social Ventures Fund, LP 1,467,634 19.42 -
Internet Fund VII Pte. Ltd. 3,302,191 43,69 -

o
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Other equity

X As at As at
Particulacs March 31,2022|  March 31,2021
Securities premium reserve 119,110.04 33,259.58
Statutory reserve (in terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1961) 2,686.66 1,317.52
Deemed equity contribution 780.91 216.19
Retained Earnings- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations {35.16) -
Retained earnings - Other than remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 10,722.58 5,158.02
Employee stock Options Outstanding Account 112.98 -
Cash flow hedges reserve (52.82) -
Total 133,325.19 39,951.31

i) Securities premium reserve

i As at As at
Particulars March 31,2022|  March 31,2021
Opening balance 33,259.58 24,497.35
Add: Securities premium on issue of Series A-CCPS 77,946.14 -
Add: Amount received pursuant to issue of equity shares 7,919.32 8,764.46
Less: Share issue expenses 15.00 -
Less: Stamp duty on issue of equity shares - 2.23
Closing balance 119,110.04 33,259.58

of the Companies Act, 2013,

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve is utilised In accordance with the provisions

(ii) Statutory reserve (in terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

x As at As at
Rarticulars March 31,2022| March 31,2021
Opening balance 1,317.52 519.03
Add: Transferred from retained earnings 1,369.14 798.49
Closing balance 2,686.66 1,317.52

This reserve is maintained in accordance with the provisions of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 wherein every non-
banking financial company shall create a reserve fund the transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every

year as disclosed in the Statement of profit and loss and before any dividend is declared.
{iii) Retained Earnings- Remeasurement of Post Employment Benefit Obligations

Particulars

As at
March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

Opening balance

Add: Transferred from other comprehensive income (35.16) -
Closing balance (35.16) -
(iv) Cash flow hedges reserves

5 As at As at
Particulars March 31,2022|  March 31,2021
Opening balance - -
Add: Transferred from other comprehensive income (52.82) -
Closing balance (52.82) -
(v) Deemed equity contribution

" As at As at
Particukare March 31,2022|  March 31,2021
Opening balance 216.19 109.52
Add: Share based payment expense as per the statement of profit and loss (Refer note 31) 564.72 106.67
Closing balance 780.91 216,19

This related to the stock options granted by the Holding Company to Company's employees under an employee stock options plan. For

further information about the share based payments to employees is set out in note 44.1.

(vi)Employee stock Options Outstanding Account
Particulars il Asat
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Opening balance = &
Add: Share based payment expense as per the statement of profit and loss (Refer note 44,2 & 112.98
31) ' -
Closing balance 112.98 -
(vii) Retained earnings - Other than remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2022|  March 31,2021
Opening balance 5,158.02 1,964.05
Add: Profit for the year 6,933.70 3,992.46
Less: Transferred to statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934~ (1,369.14) (798.49)
Closing balance 10,722.58 5,158.02

“ Transfer to statutory reserve u/s 45-IC of the reserve bank of india act, 1934 calculated on the total comprehensive income for the

current year and previous year
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Interest income (on financial assets measured at amortised cost) Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Interest on loans* 28,663.85 18,884.87
Interest income from investments 1,099.23 233.35
Interest on deposits with banks 74.58 132.03
Total 29,837.66 19,250.25
*includes income from related parties amounting ¥ 1,022.30 lakhs (Refer note 39)
Fee and commission income Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Service and other fees 1,244.66 403.75
Subvention charges* 94.34 10.58
Total 1,339.00 414.33
* includes ¥ 75.79 lakhs from related party. (Refer note 39)
Net gain on fair value changes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
-On Alternative investment funds 109.92 88.39
-On Mutual fund investments 10.63 -
Total 120.55 88.39
Fair value changes:
-Realised (Including reinvested) 117.54 88.39
-Unrealised 3.01 -
Total 120.55 88.39
Other income Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Interest on income tax refund - 3.56
Ex-Gratia Grant Received 19.64 -
Miscellaneous Income 6.91 =
Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment - 0.64
Total 26.55 4.20
Finance costs Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Borrowings:

-On Loans from banks 5,128.31 2,942.47
-0On Loans from financial institutions 5,164.24 3,098.93
Debt securities

-On Debentures 3,728.54 2,720.94
-On Commercial paper 224.85 203.20
Others:

-0On security deposits 50.92 56.39
Total 14,296.86 9,021.93
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30 |Impairment on financial instruments

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Impairment on financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Impairment allowance on loans (Refer note 45) 690.33 713.28
Impairment allowance on investment 6.15 8.43
Impairment on account of COVID-19 a 245.50
Loss on loans & advances written off 670.97 609.26
[Net off recovery ¥ 6.9 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 41,25)]
Total 1,367.45 1,576.47
31 |Employees benefit expense Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Salaries and wages™* 3,712.39 2,763.28
Contribution to provident and other fund [Refer note 36(a)] 78.30 59.39
Share based payment to employees (Refer note 44.1 & 44.2) 677.70 106.67
Gratuity [Refer note 36(b)] 87.21 54.57
Staff welfare expense 22.06 11.57
Total 4,577.66 2,995.48

*includes cost allocation made and received from related parties amounting to ¥ 82.65 lakhs and ¥ 29.30 lakhs respectively

(Refer note 39)

32 |Other expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Rates and taxes 177.25 130.43
Communication costs 14.82 10.02
Printing and stationery 1.35 0.59
Auditor remuneration:
- For statutory audit 15.00 14.00
- For limited review 6.00 5.50
- For tax audit 3.00 2.50
- For other certification and reporting 3.90 5.78
- For out of pocket expenses 0.30 0.26
Legal and professional 205.96 107.85
Insurance 17.47 15.75
Travelling and conveyance* 186.27 113.27
Information technology expenses# 216.72 156.68
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 51) 60.00 23.60
Loss on sale of bonds 1.74 =
Loss on derecognition of financial assets 290.46 =
Loss on sale of Investment property - 1.04
Business auxiliary services (Refer note 39) 314.89 146.43
Bank charges 6.58 7.93
Directors’ sitting fees 8.00 5.00
Miscellaneous 10.09 8.54
Total 1,539.80 755.17

*Travelling and conveyance includes net cost allocation received from related party amounting ¥ 34.61 lakhs (Refer note

#Information technology expenses includes cost allocation received from related party amounting ¥ 147.07 lakhs (Refer

note 39)
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33 Tax expense

Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Year ended

Year ended

BartiEiare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current tax

In respect of the current year 2,709.78 1,538.43
2,709.78 1,538.43

Deferred tax charge/ (benefits)

In respect of the current year (132.49) (150.44)
(132.49) (150.44)

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the reported

tax expense in statement of profit and loss, is as follows:-

5 Year ended Year ended
Partioubans March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 9,510.99 5,381.68
Domestic tax rate 25,168% 25.168%
Expected tax expense [A] 2,393.73 1,354.46
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense
Non deductible expenses 183.91 36.24
Others (0.35) (2.71)
Total adjustments [B] 183.56 33.53
Actual tax expense [C=A+B] 2,577.29 1,387.99
Tax expense comprises:

Current tax expense 2,709.78 1,538.43
Deferred tax credit (132.49) (150.44)
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss [D] 2,577.29 1,387.99
Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income tax relating to remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 11.82 0.41
Movement in cash flow hedge reserve 17.76 -
29.58 0.41
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:-
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 11.82 0.41
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 17.76 -
29.58 0.41




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Lakhs of T unless otherwise stated)

34

35

36

(a)

(b)

Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
a) Basic earnings per share 13.66 8.29
b) Diluted earnings per share 13.52 8.29
¢) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
B Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
Basic earnings per share
Profits attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share 6,933.70 3,993.69
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted earnings per share 6,933.70 3,993.69
d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
] Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per 50,766,525 48,196,747
share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share 514,173 -
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in 51,280,698 48,196,747
calculating diluted earnings per share
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
Borrowings
Particulars Debt securities (Other than Total
debt securities)
As at April 1, 2020 14,529.07 47,720.49 62,249.56
Cash flows:
Proceeds from debt securities/borrowings 30,299.94 100,406.90 130,706.84
Repayment of debt securities/borrowings (12,360.91) (63,757.92) (76,118.83)
As at March 31, 2021 32,468.10 84,369.47 116,837.57
Cash flows:
Proceeds from debt securities/borrowings 36,044.25 279,116.91 315,161.16
Repayment of debt securities/borrowings (29,380.81) (201,139.19) (230,520.00)
As at March 31, 2022 39,131.54 162,347.19 201,478.73

Disclosures under Ind AS 19 (Employee benefits)

Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards
Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ State Insurance schemes, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation other
than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Amount recognized as an expense towards defined contribution plans

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contribution to employees provident fund 78.06 58.71
Contribution to employee state insurance schemes 0.24 0.68
Total 78.30 59.39

Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates a funded gratuity benefit plan wherein every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary (includes
dearness allowance) last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death,
whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service. Gratuity benefits are valued in accordance with the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972,

The gratuity plan of the company is funded gratuity plan. The trust named "Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity
Trust" was formed on March 25, 2022 to manage the employee gratuity fund, approval of which in Income Tax is awaited.




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Interest rate risk, Liquidity risk, Salary escalation risk, demographic risk,
regulatory risk

The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an
increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase In the value
of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Interest rate risk

Liquidity risk This Is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratulty payouts. This may arise due
to non availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not
being sold in time.

The present value of the defined benefit plan Is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of
plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from
the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the
plan's liability.

Salary escalation risk

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The

Demaographic risk
Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as
amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts
(e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of # 20,00,000).

Regulatory Risk

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2022 by Mr. Khushwant
Pahwa (FIAL M.No. 04446), Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related

current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method

Principal assumptions: Gratuity
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.75%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 9.00% 8.00%
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Withdrawal rate based on age: (per
annum)
Upto 30 years 5.00% 12.00%
31-44 years 2.00% 5.00%
Above 44 years 0.00% 0.00%
In service mortality TIALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows :-

Particulars Gratuity
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Current service cost 77.38 49.29
Past service cost and (gain)/Loss from settlements - -
Net interest cost/ (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit/(Liability)/Asset 9.83 5.28
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 87.21 54.57
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 21.97 2.43
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 8.35 0.44
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from experience adjustment 17.64 (1.23)
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (0.98) -
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in Other comprehensive Income 46.98 1.64

The Current Service Cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the Employee benefits expenses line items in the statement of
profit and loss.The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company obligation in respect of its defined benefits plan is as follows: _
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of funded / unfunded defined benefit obligation 280.81 136.60
Fair value of plan assets (67.47) -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 213.34 136.60
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Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning
Investment Income

Employer's Contribution 66.49 -
Employee's Contribution = -
Employee's Contribution = -
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 0.98 -
Transfer In / (Out) = -
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end 67.47 -
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :-
Particulars Gratuity
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of obligation as at the beglnning 136.60 78.07
Current service cost 77.38 49.29
Interest cost 9.82 5.28
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- changes in demographic assumptions 21.97 2.43
- changes in financial assumptions 8.35 0.44
- experience adjustment 17.64 (1.23)
- Others - -
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid & i
Transfer in/{out) 9.05 Z.32
Present value of obligation as at the end 280.81 136.60

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31i-Mar-21

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+ 1%) 351.02 226.84 164.03 115,13
(% change compared to base due to 25.00% -19.20% 20.10% -15.70%
sensitivity)
Salary Growth Rate (-/+ 1%) 239.96 325.40 117.73 157.81
(% change compared to base due to -14.50% 15,90% -13.80% 15,50%
sensitivity)
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50% of attrition 289.70 272.66 149.39 125.68
rates)
(% change compared to base due to 3.20% -2.90% 9.40% -8.00%
sensitivity)
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10% of mortality 280.82 280.82 136.62 136.57
rates)
(% change compared to base due to 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
sensitivity)
Sensitivity A is

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isclation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. There is no change in the method

of valuation for the prior period.

Other disclosures

M rit le of defined benefit obli
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) 23 Years 19 Years
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year 313 2.69
2-5 years 25.47 26.89
6-10 years 37.40 35.50
More than 10 years 1,675.48 523.24

(c) Other long-term benefits:
absences in

The actuarial valuation of compensated absences has been carried out by an independent actuary. The obligation of compensat
e Company as at 31 March 2022 amounts to ¥ 88.97 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 50.59 Lakhs). !

respect of employees of th
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38

39

Segment reporting

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of financing and all its operations are in India only. Accordingly, there is no separate reportable segment as per
Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments' In respect of the Company.

Cost allocation

OFB Tech Private Limited, the holding company, allocates commaon costs viz. rent, cost of utilities, payroll, technical support etc. to the Company on an appropriate
basis, mutually agreed between the two companies. During the current year, personnel costs and administrative and other costs amounting to # 555.60 Lakhs

{previous year ¥ 477.00 Lakhs) have been allocated by OFB Tech Private Limited to the Company on account of the above.

Further, pursuant to cost sharing arrangement, the Company has also allocated common costs related to Payroll and other expenses to OFB Tech Private Limited,
OFG Manufacturing Businesses Private Limited (Formerly known as Ofcons Projects And Services Private Limited and QOagri Farm Private Limited (fellow subsidiary),
The costs allocated by the Company during the current yearis 2 112.72 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 26.65 Lakhs).

Disclosure as required by Ind AS -24 on "Related Party Disclosure” notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015:

List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related party

OFB Tech Private Limited

OFG Manufacturing Businesses Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ofcons Projects And Services
Private Limited)

Qagri Farm Private Limited

Samruddhi Organic Farm (India) Private Limited
E-Mox Manufacturing Private Limited

Key management personnel
Ruchi Kalra

Vasant Sridhar

Asish Mohapatra

Sathyan David

Akshat Vikram Pande

Rohit Kapoor

Brij Kishore Kiradoo

Nature of Relationship
Helding company
Fellow subsidiary company

Fellow subsidiary company
Fellow subsidiary company (w.e.f. November 08, 2021)
Fellow subsidiary company (w.e.f. February 01, 2022)

Whole-time director and Chief financial officer
Executive director

Non-executive director

Independent director

Independent director

Independent director

Company Secretary

Pinki Jha Company Secretary (w.e.f May 26, 2022)
Transactions with the related parties and key g t per | during the year:
Particulars . Year ended Year ended|
Nature of transaction March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021|
OFB Tech Private Limited Issue and allotment of equity share capital 8,056.38 8,999.99
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 8.25
Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.60 11.58
Business auxiliary services (cost allocation received) 315.36 152,49
Business auxiliary services (cost allocation made) = 5.14
Employee costs and reimbursements (cost allocation received)* 29.30 165.05
Employee costs and reimbursements (cost allocation made)® 82.65 20.57
Information technology expenses (On allocation basis) 147.07 126.88
Interest and other Income 1,052.32 301.38
Travelling and other expenses {cost allocation received) 63.87 32.58
Travelling and other expenses (cost allocation made) 27.02 -
Gratuity and leave encashment recoverable 16.68 2,65
Gratuity and leave encashment payable 1.43 -
Payment on behalf of borrowers 107,189.27 39,082.53
Deemed equity contribution (Employee stock options) 564.72 106.67
OFG Manufacturing Businesses Private Limited Business auxiliary services (cost allocation made) 0.63 0.56
{Farmerly known as Ofcons Projects And Services Loan Given 224.00 -
Private Limited) Loan Repaid 11,62 -
Employee costs and reimbursements (cost allocation made) - 0.02
Gratuity recoverable
Leave encashment recoverable
Sale of property, plant and equipment 2.19 1.93
Interest and other income 13.87 6.89
Gratuity and leave encashment recoverable 3.39 0.59
Gratuity and leave encashment payable 2,52 0.47
Travelling and other expeses (cost allocation made) 1.95 -
Payment on behalf of borrowers 1,019.63 1,933.33
Samruddhi Organic Farm (India) Private Limited Interest and other income 20.00 -
Loan Glven 200.88 =
Loan Repayment receipt (Including interest and other income) 860.93 -
E-Mox Manufacturing Private Limited Interest and other income 5.54 -
Loan Given 146.43 -
Loan Repaid 140.54 =
Qagri Farm Private Limited Business auxiliary services (cost allocation made) - 0.36
Business auxiliary services (cost allocation received) 0.16 =
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 3.25
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.60 -
Travelling and other expeses (cost allocation made) 0.47 -
Travelling and other expeses (cost allocation received) 0.18 -
Interest Income 6.36 18.67
Payment an behalf of borrowers 1B4.77 -
Gratuity and leave encashment payable 4,29 0.88
E;)ERWC{:‘?
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Ruchi Kalra Managerial remuneration 26.65 24.78
26.65 24,78
Vasant Sridhar Managerial remuneration 38.70 38.01
Employee stock option compensation expense 368.22 4.68
406.92 42.69
Brij Kishore Kiradoo Remuneration 16.15 11.92
Employee stock option compensation expense 144.40 2.00
160.55 13.92
Sathyan David Directors sitting fees 5.25 3.25
Akshat Vikram Pande Directors sitting fees 1.75 1.00
Rohit Kapoor Directors sitting fees 1.00 0.75
* Includes KMP salary cross charged amounting ¥ 29,30 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 14.20 Lakhs)
# Includes KMP salary cross charged amounting ¥ 10.14 Lakhs (previous year 7 9,15 Lakhs)
Balance outstanding at year end
As at As at
Nameof refatad party Napee March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
OFB Tech Private Limited Payables 211,54 -
Receivable - 95.24
Payable- loan pending disbursement 769.90 361,77
QFG Manufacturing Businesses Private Limited Receivable 5.61 4.07
(Formerly known as Ofcons Projects And Services
Private Limited} Receivable against loan given 221.62 -
Qagri Farm Private Limited Receivable = 15.28
Payable 4.75 -
E-Mox Manufacturing Private Limited Receivable against loan given 214.09 -

Guarantee given to lenders by holding Company for Loan outstanding as at March 31, 2022 # 43,403.72 lakhs and March 31, 2021 ¥ 112,740.99 lakhs




OXY¥YZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

40 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered ar settled,

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Taotal
months months months months

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 53,820.78 - 53,820.78 19,900.71 - 19,900.71
Bank balances ather than (a) above 868.66 - 868.66 908.76 - 908.76
Derivative financial instruments 23.61 = 23.61 = - -
Trade Receivable 110,31 - 110.31 - - -
Loans* 228,799.80 25,212.09 254,011.89 125,505.70 10,146.75 135,652.45
Investments 32,827.53 820,56 33,648.09 6,204.75 764.80 6,969.55
Other financial assets 25,12 7 25.12 274,15 20.83 254.98
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) = 397.85 397.85 g 78.66 78.66
Deferred tax assets (Net) - 663.60 663.60 - 501.53 501.53
Investment Property = 149,92 149,92 - 149.92 149,92
Froperty, Plant and Equipment - 84.18 84,18 - 35.08 35.08
Other non-financial assets 115,73 - 115.73 21.29 - 21.29
Total Assets 316,591.54 27,328.20 343,919.74 152,815.36 11,697.57 164,512.93
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 94,19 - 94.19 : - -
Trade Payables

(1) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises = o - - - -

(i} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises 230.80 = 230,80 205.70 - 205,70
Other payables

(i) Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises = = - - - -

(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises 263.44 - 263.44 21,46 - 21.46
Debt securities 18,562,08 20,569.46 39,131.54 12,807.09 19,661.01 32,468.10
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 106,354.18 55,993.01 162,347.19 60,871.17 23,498.30 84,369.47
Other financial liabilities 1,752.65 = 1,752.65 1,868.14 * 1,868.14
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities 259,21 - 259.21 - - -
Provisions 5.38 296.92 302.31 6.50 180.69 187.19
Other non-financial liabilities 309.67 - 309.67 431.22 “ 431.22
Total Liabilities 127,831.61 76,859.39 204,691.00 76,211.28 43,340.00 119,551.28
Net equity 188,759.93 {49,531.19) 139,228.74 76,604.08 (31,642.43) 44,961.65

* Loans is net of impairment loss allowance on loans considering realisability, the amount recoverable from Stage-3 assets is classified under after 12 months.
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41.

41.1

42.
42.1

Capital
The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve

Bank of India (RBI) of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI,
The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reparted period.

Capital management

The capital management objectives of the Company are:

- to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios

- to ensure the ability to continue as a going cancern

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company moniters capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and bank balances as presented on the face of balance sheet,

Management assesses the capital requirements of the Company in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure, This takes into account the subordination
levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return on capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company has a target gearing ratio of 3.00 to 3,50

determined as a proportion of net debt to total equity,

Regulatory capital
As contained in RBI Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {(Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as "RBI Master Directions”), the Company is required to maintain a capital ratio consisting of Tier I and Tier IT capital
not less than 15% of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off- balance sheet items. Qut of this, Tier I capital shall not be
less than 10%. The BoDs regularly monitors the maintenance of prescribed levels of Capital Risk Adjusted Ratio (CRAR).

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) and other key financial parameters are as under:

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st
2022 March 2021

Capital Adequacy ratio - Tier I 47.99% 31.34%
Capital Adequacy ratio - Tier II 0.38% 0.98‘!&‘
48.38% 32.32%

Categories of financial instruments
The Carrying value of financial assets and liabilities are as follows :-

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Fair value Fair value Amortised Total

through P&EL through OCI cost

Financial Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents - - 53,820.78 53,820.78
Bank balances other than above - - 868.66 BEB.66
Derivative financial instruments - 23.61 = 23.61
Trade Receivables - - 110.31 110.31
Loans - - 254,011.89 254,011.89
Investments 30,001,51 - 3,646.58 33,648.09
Other financial assets £ = 25.12 25,12
Total financial assets 30,001.51 23.61 312,483.34 342,508.46
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 94.19 - 94,19
Trade payables = - 230.80 230.80
Other payables - r 263.44 263.44
Debt Securities - - 39,131.54 39,131.54
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) - - 162,347.19 162,347.19
Other financial liabilities - - 1,752.65 1,752.65

Total financial liabilities = 94,19 203,725.62 203,819.81

As at March 31, 2021

i Fair value Fair value Amortised
Particuians through PEL  through OCI cost Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - t 19,900.71 19,900.71
- - 908.76 908.76

Bank balances other than above
Derivative financial instruments
Trade Receivable

] 135,652.45 135,652.45

Loans -
Investments 3,057.25 - 3,912.30 6,969.55
Other financial assets = - 294.98 294,98
Total financial assets 3,057.25 - 160,669.20 163,726.45
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments = = = &
Trade payables - - 205.70 205.70
Other payables - - 21.46 21.46
Debt Securities i - 32,468.10 32,468.10
Borrowings {Other than debt securities) = - 84,369.47 84,369.47
Other financial liabilities = & 1,868.14 1,868.14
Total financial liabilities - = 118,932.87 118,932.87
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43. Fair value Ir of fi ial assets and liabilities

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

Except as detailed out in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial

statements approximate their fair values.

As at March 31, 2022 Carrying amount Fair Value

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents* = - 53,820.78 53,820.78 - - =
Bank balances other than above* i F = B68B.66 868.66 - - =
Derivative financial instruments# - 23.61 - 23.61 - 23.61 i
Trade Receivables* - - 110.31 110.31 - - -
Loans = - 254,011.89 254,011.89 z - 254,011.89
Investments# 30,001.51 H 3,646.58 33,648.09 30,001.51 = i
Other financial assets* = 5 25.12 25.12 - = a
Total financial assets 30,001.51 23.61 312,483.34 342,508.46 30,001.51 23.61 254,011.89
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments# - 94,19 - 94.19 - 94.19 -
Trade payables* - S 230.80 230.80 - - -
Other payables* - E 263.44 263.44 - - -
Debt Securities - o 39,131.54 39,131.54 - - 39,131.54
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) - “ 162,347.19 162,347.19 = - 162,347.19
Other financial liabilities* - - 1,752.65 1,752.65 - - -
Total financial liabilities - 94.19 203,725.62 203,819.81 - 94.19 201,478.73
As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Fair Value

Particulars EVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents* - - 19,900.71 19,900.71 - - -
Bank balances other than above* = = 908.76 908.76 - - -
Loans - - 135,652.45 135,652.45 - - 135,652.45
Investments# 3,057.25 " 3,912.30 6,969.55 3,057.25 - 1
Other financial assets* i = 294.98 294.98 - - -
Total financial assets 3,057.25 = 160,669.20 163,726.45 3,057.25 = 135,652.45
Financial liabilities

Trade payables* - = 205.70 205.70 - - -
QOther payables* - - 21.46 21.46 - - -
Debt Securities - - 32,468.10 32,468.10 - - 32,468.10
Barrowings (Other than debt securities) - - 84,369.47 84,369.47 - - 84,369.47
Other financial liabilities* - = 1,868.14 1,868.14 - - -
Total financial liabilities = - 118,932.87 118,932.87 - - 116,837.57

*Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, other payables and other financial liabilities: approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

#The fair values disclosed are only in respect of investment classified at FVTPL and derivative financial instruments classified at FYTOCI.
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44.1 Share based payments

Employee Stock Option Plan ("ESOP Plan”)

OFB Tech Private Limited ("OFB’), the holding company, had framed an OfBusiness Stock Options Plan, 2016 ('ESOP 2016 Plan’), which was duly approved by
the Shareholder of the OFB in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 8 April 2016. ESOP 2016 Plan will be administered by Compensation committee and in
the absence of such committee Board of Directors of the OFB shall ensure the administration of the ESOP 2016 Plan. The stock options granted are categorized
as equity settled and have a graded vesting. The options vest at various dates over the period of one to four year from the date of grant. The options expires
within 3 years from the date of last vesting.

During the year OFB had sub-divided it's shares in the ratio of 1:10 on Jun 25, 2021. Further the OFB had made bonus issuance in the ratio of 1:2120 on July
05, 2021,

Pursuant to incorporation of the Company, certain employees of OFB were transferred to the Company. To align the interest of employees, it was determined
that transferred employees of the Company may continue to participate in the ESOP 2016 Plan of OFB and accordingly they are entitled to shares of OFB.

Particular's Grant Date Number of

options

granted
Grant-I (FY 16-17) 08-Apr-16 721,140
Grant-II to Grant-IV (FY 17-18) 08-Apr-17 to 28-Feb-18 1,972,530
Grant-V to Grant-VI (FY 18-19) 02-Jul-18 to 05-Jul-18 2,417,940
Grant-VII to Grant-X (FY 19-20) 01-Apr-19 to 05-Jul-19 3,287,550
Grant-XII to Grant-XIII (FY 20-21) 01-Oct-20 to 01-Mar-21 3,287,550
Grant-XVI to Grant XXVIII (FY 21-22) 01-Apr-21 to 01-Jan-22 6,327,367

Vesting Period - As determined by Compensation Committee subject to minimum of 1 year and maximum of 4 years from the grant date,
Exercise Period - The options vest at various dates over the period of one to four year from the date of grant. The options expire within 3 years from the date

of last vesting.
Exercise Price - Exercise price shall be determined by Compensation Committee and specified in Grant letter's but it shall not be less than the face value of

shares of the Company.

Vesting Conditions - Vesting of option is a function of achievement of performance criteria or any other criteria as specified by Compensation committee and
communicated in the grant letter. Further, the vesting takes place on staggered basis over the respective vesting period

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions (Refer note 31) 564.72 106.67
'll-':::l expense arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in Statement of Profit and 564.72 106.67
The details of activity under the ESOP Plans have been summarised below:
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Shares arising out of Options Weighted Shares arising out | Weighted average

average exercise of Options exercise price
price (in %)
(in %)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7,890,120 22.48 332 277,040.00
Granted during the year 6,327,367 74.24 155 710,628.44
Options granted prior to transfer date in respect of - # & i
employees transferred from holding company during
the year
Exercised during the year (1,246,300) 15.84 (108} 212,225.00
Vested for transferred employees before respective
transfer date ) - - )
Forfeited during the year ~ (381,780) 25.83 (7) 264,626.00
Qutstanding at the end of the year 12,589,407 49,05 372 476,752.60
Exercisable at the end of the year 938,330 7.36 9 133,107.09
Weighted average remaining contractual life of the 6.07 years 6.59 years
options outstanding at the end of the year = 7

~ Unvested options forfeited in accordance with terms prescribed under the respective ESOP Schemes.

Fair value of options granted

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year pertaining to ESOP 2016 plan is ¥ 15,23 (previous year ¥ 12,91). The fair value at
grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and
expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list
the inputs used for fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans.

For options granted during the year

Particulars

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Dividend yield (%) 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility (%) 33.50% - 36.30% 36.30% - 39.50%
Risk free interest rate (%) 5.70% - 6,10% 5.30% - 5.70%
Expected life of share options (in years) 4,80 4.75
Fair value of options at grant date (in Rupees) 8.19 - 138.71 173,774 - 307,923
Fair value of share at grant date (in Rupees) 49.84 - 231.24 651,044 - B78,717
Exercise price (in Rupees) 48.17-347.21-" ], 649,802-1,627,574

TS
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44,2 Share based payments

Employee Stock Option Plan ("ESOP Plan")

Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited ("Oxyzo’), the company, had framed an Oxyzo Stock Options Plan, 2021 ("ESOP 2021 Plan’), which was duly approved by
the Shareholder of the Oxyzo in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 November 2021, created an ESOP pool and further expanded the same in the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 10 March 2022, ESOP 2021 Plan will be administered by Compensation committee and in the absence of such committee
Board of Directors of the Oxyzo shall ensure the administration of the ESOP 2021 Plan. The stock options granted are categorized as equity settled and have a
graded vesting. The options vest at various dates over the period of one to four year from the date of grant. All vested options not exercised as per exercise period

shall lapse.

Particular's Grant Date Number of
options

Grant-I 03-Jan-22 2,132,651

Vesting Period - As determined by Compensation Committee subject to minimum of 1 year and maximum of 4 years from the grant date.
Exercise Period - The options vest at various dates over the period of one to four year from the date of grant. All vested options not exercised as per exercise period

shall lapse.
Exercise Price - Exercise price shall be determined by Compensation Committee and specified in Grant letter's but it shall not be less than the face value of shares of

the Company.
Vesting Conditions - Vesting of option is a function of achievement of performance criteria or any other criteria as specified by Compensation committee and
communicated in the grant letter. Further, the vesting takes place on staggered basis over the respective vesting period

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions (Refer note 31)

112.98

in Stat

of Profit and

Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions rec
Loss

112.98

The details of activity under the ESOP Plans have been summarised below:

31 Marc

h 2021

Particulars 31 March 2022

Shares arising out of Options

Weighted average

Shares arising out

Weighted average

of Options exercise price
{in Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -

Granted during the year 2,132,651 650 2 -

Options granted prior to transfer date in respect of - -

employees transferred from holding company during the

vear

Exercised during the year

Vested for transferred employees before respective 5 n

transfer date

Forfeited during the year ~

Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

Weighted average remaining contractual life of the

options outstanding at the end of the year

# Unvested options forfeited in accordance with terms prescribed under the respective ESOP Schemes,

exercise price
(in Rs.)

2,132,651

3.4 years % -

Fair value of options granted

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year pertaining to ESOP 2022 plan is ¥ 50.80 (previous year ¥ Nil). The fair value at grant date
is determined using the Black-Scholes model which takes Into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list the inputs used for
fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans.

Particulars For options granted during the year
ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% -
Expected volatility (%) 38.00% -
Risk free interest rate (%) 5.40% -
Expected life of share options (in years) 3.40 -
Fair value of options at grant date (in Rupees) 50.80 E
Exercise price (in Rupees) 650.00 -

Jowd-
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Fi ial risk t

Risk Management

Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As a financial company, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular
to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company's Board of directors has overall responsibility far
the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. In accordance with the RBI guidelines to enable NBFCs to adopt best practices and greater transparency in their
operations, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and Risk Management Committee. Risk Management Committee
reviews risk management in relation to various integrated risks of the Company. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages

the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Loan recejvables, Cash and bank|Expected loss analysis Credit risk analysis, diversification of customers/asset
balances, financial assets measured at base, credit limits and collateral,
amortised cost

Liquidity risk Barrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and barrowing

forecasts facilities

Market risk- interast rate non-current  borrawings at  variable|Sensitivity analysis Change in interest rates
rates

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, investments and other financial assets. Credit risk is the risk that a
counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company has established various internal risk managsment process to provide early identification of possible
changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties.The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as 2 result of the risks to which it is
exposed and take corrective actions. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk arises from loans financing, cash and cash equivalents, Investments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as shown below:

Particulars Balance as at March 31,2022 Balance as at March 31,2021

Loans 254,011.89 135,652.45
Investments 33,648.09 ©,969.55
Trade Receivables 110.31 -

Cash and cash equivalents 53,820.78 19,900.71
Other bank balances 868.66 908,76
Other financials asset 25.12 294.98

The Company splits its exposure into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on shared credit risk characteristics, as described below in the following order:
- Secured/unsecured i.e. based on whether the loans are secured

- Nature of security |.e. the nature of the security if the loans are determined to be secured

- Nature of loan i.e. based on the nature of loan

The credit risk management policy of the Company seeks to have following controls and key metrics that allows credit risks to be identified, assessed, monitored and reported In a
timely and efficiant manner in compliance with regulatory requirements,

- Standardize the process of [dentifying new risks and designing appropriate contrals for these risks

- Maintain an appropriate credit administration and loan

- Establish metrics for portfolio monitoring

= Minimize losses due to defaults or untimely payments by borrowars

- Design appropriate credit risk mitigation techniques

Expected credit loss for loans

In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the Company makes reserves basis the expected credit lass (ECL) model for the outstanding loans as balance
sheet date. In addition to ECL output, the Company has taken conservative view through specific provisions.

The below discussion describes the Company's approach for assessing impairment as stated In the significant accounting policies.

Expected credit loss measurement

In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the institution uses the days past due data and forecast information to assess deterioration in
credit quality of a financial asset for all the portfolios. The Company considers its histarical loss experience and adjusts this for current observable data. Ind AS 109 requires the use
of macroeconomic factors.

Definition of default
The Company defines a financial instrument as In default, any borrawer whose contractual payments are due for more than 90 days is termed as default, which is in line with RBIL
Probability of Default (*PD*)

PD is defined as the probability of whether the borrower will default on their obligation in the future. For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required, For Stage 2 a
lifetime PD is required (equivalent to 12-montd PD in the given case) while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD. The loans have been segmented into three stages
based on the risk profiles which reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a loan. The Company categories loans at the reporting date into stages based on the days past

due ("DPD’) status as under: -

Stage 1: Low credit risk, i.e. 0 to 30 days past due

Stage 2: Significant increase in credit risk, i.e. 31 to 30 days past due
Stage 3: Impaired assets, i.e. more than 90 days past due

The campany considered other variables such as Gross Domestic Product, Core Inflation and PMI index, however all these factors were found to be an aggregate of multiple
underlying constituents of the economy i.e. Agriculture, Services and Manufacturing which were not in line with the customer mix of the company.

Loss Given Default ('LGD")
Loss given default (LGD) represents estimated financial loss the Company is likely to suffer in the event of default, LGD Is calculated using recovery pattern and wvalue of collateral {ir

applicable) in default accounts.
The company has added all costs incurred on actuals basls for recovery in all default cases to arrive at final LGD.The recovered amount in all default cases has been discounted for
the weighted average of the number of days of default in all such cases to compute the final LGD,
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Exposure at Default ('EAD')
The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financlal instruments subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client’s ability to increase
its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too.
The company has considered cross default criteria while computing EAD i.e. If any customer defaults on one active loan then the customer has been marked as default on other loan
{if any) as well.
While computing EAD for stage 1 accounts, the company has considered 75% commitments as per FIRB guidelines which are contractual on undrawn lines as the same does not
require any pre-approval at the time of disbursement, For stage 2 and 3 accounts, the Company has not considered any commitment on the undrawn lines for EAD as tha policy

does not allow for any disbursement in case of any overdue.

The ECL is cormputed as a product of PD, LGD and EAD.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

Paragraph BS5.5.22 states, financial instruments are not considered to have low credit risk when they are regarded as having a low risk of loss simply because of the value of
collateral and the financial instrument without that collateral would not be considered low credit risk. Financial instruments are also not considered to have low credit risk simply
because they have a lower risk of default than the entity’s other financial instruments or relative to the credit risk of the jurisdiction within which an entity operates.

The loan portfolio of the Company has both secured and unsecured loans and they vary with the type of funding. Basis the past history of receipts against collateral, the overall ECL
for the secured portfolio Is net of collateral value.

Quantitative and qualitative factors considered along with quantification i.r.t loss rates

Impact of specific risk factors was taken into account while staging of accounts and computation of PD, The forecasted point in time (PIT) PDs have been estimated by establishing a
link between through the cycle (TTC) PDs and macroeconomic variables i.e. growth rate prescribed by Index of Industrial Production (‘IIPY). The macro- economic variables were
regressed using a logical regression against systemic default ratio out of the impact of macro-economic variables on the system wide default rates.

As per the guidelines laid under the standard, the company has done probability weighted scenarios to arrive at the final ECL. These scenarios reflect a baseling, upturn and
downturn in economic activity basis which ECL requirements could vary. The final ECL has subsequently been discounted.

Credit risk exp e and impairment loss all e

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Exposure Impairment Exposure Impairment
allowance allowance

Credit impaired loan assets (Default event triggered) (Stage 3) 2,609.84 1,508.88 1,672.30 988.03
Loan assets having significant increase In credit risk (Stage 2) 2,126.76 245.87 4,390.74 324.43
Other loan assets (Stage 1) 253,116.40 1,104.38 132,345.45 660.72
Impairment on account of COVID-19 200.00 - 399.62
Total 257,853.00 3,063.13 138,408.49 2,372.80
An analysis of Expected credit loss rate® :

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage-1 0.44% 0.50%
Stage-2 11.75% 7.39%
Stage-3 57.82% 59,08%
Total 1.19% 1.71%

* Expected credit loss rate is computed ECL divided by EAD

Specific Provision
Company reviews and monitors all cases DPD 240+ and based on the recoverability and various other factors like client’s situation, legal cases and others, makes pravision in
addition to ECL by using estimates and judgments in view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items.

Write off policy

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when, as at the reporting date,
financial asset is overdue for 12 months or more and the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or source of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

Impact of Covid-19

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in significant volatility in financial markets and a decrease in global and India's economic actlvities FY 2021 and early FY 2022,

Consequent lockdowns and varying restrictions imposed by the central and various state governments had led to disruptions and dislocations of individuals and businesses.

However, with the gradual lifting of the lock down restrictions during the year, the operations of the Company hava returned to normal levels of activity. The Company has been
lending actively to its customers.

The overall financial metrices of the Company have improved from the prior year and the Company has made adequate expected credit loss provisions an its loan book in
accordance with accounting principles In India, and accordingly, the provision for expected credit loss on financial assets as at 31 March 2022 aggregates # 3,063.13 lakhs (as at 31
March 2021, 7 2,372.80 lakhs) which includes potential impact on account of the pandemic amounting ta # 200,00 lakhs (as at 31 March 2021, ¥ 399.62 lakhs).

However, in view of the dynamic nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor future events/ developments that may result in an adverse effect on the business
and operations of the Company.

Disclosure as required under RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2018-20 dated 17 April 2020 and RBI/2020-21/16
DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04,048/2020-21 dated 06 August 2020 on COVID-19 Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning is not required to be disclosed for the quarter
and year ended 31 March 2022,
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises as Company has contractual financial liabilities that is required to be serviced and redeemed as per committed timelines and in the business of lending where
money is required for the disbursement and creation of financial assets to address the going concern of Company. Liquidity risk management Is imperative to Company as this allows
covering the core expenses, market investment / creation of financial assets, timely repayment of debt commitments and continuing with their operations,

Manag of the C 1y monitors forecast of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Asset Liability Management Policy aims
to align market risk management with overall strategic objectives, articulate current interest rate view and determine pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities, The
asset liability management policy involves preparation and analysis of liquidity gap reports and ensuring preventive and corrective measures. It also addresses the interest rate risk

by providing for duration gap analysis and control by providing limits to the gaps.

The Companies aim to maintain the level of its cash equivalents, un-utilized borrowing lines and cash inflow at an amount in excess of expected cash cutflows on financial liabilities
over the next one year. At March 31, 2022, the net of expected cash Inflows and outflows within 12 months are ? 188,759.93 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ? 76,604.08 lakhs). Refer note
40 for Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities and note 48 (X) for asset liability management {(ALM),

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates
ete. The objective of market risk management is to manage and contral market risk expesure within acceptable parameters while maximising the return.

Interest rate risk
The Company uses a mix of cash and borrowings to manage the liquidity and fund requirements of its day-to-day operations. Further, certain Interest bearing liabilities carry
variable interest rates. Interest rate risk on variable borrowings is managed by way of regular monitoring borrowing rate.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars

March 31,2022

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021

Variable rate borrowing 134,853.32 50,648.91
Fixed rate borrowing 66,625.41 66,188.66
Total borrowings 201,478.73 116,837.57
Sensitivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

As at As at

March 31,2021

Interest sensitivity
Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points (March 31, 2021: 100 bps)

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (March 31, 2021: 100 bps)

1,196.71
(1,196.71)

360.81
(360.81)

Foreign currency risk

There are no un-hedged liability or assets denominated in foreign currency with the Company as at March 31, 2022 (Previous year ¥ Nil).
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(0

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Public Disclosure on liguidity risk

Background:
RBI has issued final guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies an

November 04, 2019, As per the said guidelines, NBFC are required to publicly disclose the below information related to liquidity risk on a quarterly basis.
Accordingly, the disclosure on liquidity risk as at 31st March, 2022 is as under:

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

¥ z Amount % of Total % of Total
.No. N
S.No umber of Significant counterparties (Borrowings) (Rs. lakhs) deposits Liabilities
1 10 99,325,70 NA 48.52%

Notes:
- A "Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than

1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.
- Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM
guidelines.

Top 20 large deposits (amount in Rs lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not Applicable

Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs lakhs and % of Total borrowings)

- & Amount % of Total % of Total
S.No. Number of Significant counterparties (Borrowings) (Rs. lakhs) deposits Liabilities
1 10 99,325.70 NA 48.52%

Note:
- Total Borrowing has been computed as comprising of Debt Securities, Borrowings and Interest accrued on these borrowings

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Amount % of Total
S.No. Name of the Product (Rs. lakhs) Liabilities
1 Non Convertible Debentures 32,741.77 16.00%
2 Commercial Paper 6,389.77 3.12%
3 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 162,347.19 79.31%
TOTAL 201,478.73 98.43%
Stock Ratios:
S.No. Stock Ratio o
Commercial paper as a % of total public funds
1 Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 3.12%
2 |Commercial papers as a % of total assets 1.86%
Non-convertible debentures as a % of total public funds
3 |Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities -
4 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets -
Other short-term liabilities as a % of total public funds
5 Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 1.38%
6 |Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 0.82%
Notes:

- Commercial Paper and NCDs for stock ratio is the Gross outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 including the interest accrued.

- Other Short-term Liabilities has been computed as Total Short-term Liabilities less Commercial paper less Non-convertible debentures (Original maturity
of less than one year)

Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the
Company is exposed. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of liguidity risk. The Board
of Directors approves the constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of
various aspects and types of risks, including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. Further, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset
Liability Committee (ALCO), which functions as the strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the Company from risk-return
perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board. The main objective of ALCO is teo assist the Board and RMC in effective
discharge of the responsibilities of asset-liability management, market risk management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to ensure
adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and
investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held once in a year or more frequently as the Committee may determine to adequately fulfill the
responsibilities outlined in the charter.The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its

perusal/approval/ratification.

o
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Schedule to the Bal

Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-t

g financial Company

(as required in terms of paragraph 19 of Non-banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,2016)

Particulars

As at March 31,2022

As at March 31,2021

Liabilities side:

(1)

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount out- Amount
standing overdue

Amount out- Amount
standing overdue

(a) |Debentures  : Secured
: Unsecured
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) |Deferred Credits
(c) |Term Loans
(d) |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) |Commercial Paper
(f) |Public Deposits
(g) |Other Loans (short term bank loan)

(2)

Breakup of (1)(f) above (Outstanding Public Deposit
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) |In the form of unsecured debentures

(b) |In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security

(c) |Cther Public Deposits

32,741.77 =

161,412.,99 ]

6,389.77 ]

934.20 -

32,468.10 =

80,400,94 n

3,968.53 #

Assets side:

Amount out-standing

Amount out-standing

(3)

(4)

(5)

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills

receivables [Other than those included in (4) below]:

(a) |Secured (net of provision of ¥ 493.46 lakhs (previous year ¥ 255.63 lakhs))

(b) [Unsecured (net of provision of ¥ 2,569.67 lakhs (previous year ¥ 2,117.17 lakhs))

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
other assets counting towards AFC activities
Lease assets including lease rentals under
sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease
(ii) |Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) |Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

(

Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:
1. |Quoted:

(I) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)
Unguoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(il) Debentures and Bonds

(ifi}) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Fixed deposit with bank (Including Interest accrued on deposits)
(vl) Pass through certificates

{(vii) Others {Alternative investment funds)
Long Term Investments:
1. |Quoted:
(i) Shares:

Lo

(a) Equity

(b} Preference

(ii} Debentures and Bonds

(iii}) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v} Others (please specify)

Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity (net of provisions)
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds {net of provisions)

(lii) Units of mutual funds

(lv) Government Securities

(v) Fixed deposit with bank {Including interest accrued on deposits)

(vi) Pass through certificates

!

194,673.23
59,338.66

30,001.51

7,500.90
2,822.72

104,957.34
30,695.11

1,800.87

1,346.64
3,057.25
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{6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Category Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - * - - -
(b) Companies in the same group 212.63 221.62 434,25 - - =
(c) Other related parties 3 - = - - -
2. Other than related parties 154,460.60 59,117.04 253,577.64 104,957.34 30,695.11 135,652.45
Total 194,673.23 59,338.66 254,011.89 104,957.34 30,695.11 135,652.45
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Category Market Value / | Book value (net Market Value / Book value (net of
Break up or fair of provisions) Break up or fair provisions)
value or NAV value or NAV
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries = " _ ~
(b) Companies in the same group = 5t 4 -
(c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 33,648.09 33,648.09 6,969.55 6,969.55
Total 33,648.09 33,648.09 6,969.55 6,969.55
(8) Other information
Particulars As at As at
March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021
(I) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 2,609.84 1,672.30
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 1,100.96 684,27
iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 136.60 136.60
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48 es required p to Non-banking Fi ial Ci - ¥ Impertant N posit taking C y and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

I. Capital
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(I} CRAR (%) 48.38% 32.32%
(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 47,99% 31.34%
(iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.38% 0.98%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 capital = =
{v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual DebtInstruments = -
1L Investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1. Value of Investments
{I}  Gross Value of Investments
{a) In Indiza 33,662,67 6,977.98
{b) Cutside India &
(it} Provisions for Depreciation

{a) In India 14.58 B.43
{b} Outside Indla = Z
(fii)  Met Value of Investments
{a) In India 33,648,09 6,969,55
(b) Cutside India : i
2. Movement af provisions held towards dep on |
(i) Opening balance B.43 =
{ii} Add : Provisions made during the year 6.15 8.43
(i1} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - -
(v} Clesing balance 14.58 8,43
II1. i e on Un-t Foreign C vy E

The Company has no unhedged forelgn currency exposure as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
Iv. Exchange traded interest rate(IR) derivatives

The Company has not undertaken any Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR} Derivatives during the year as well as In the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

V. Discl on risk e in der
Qualitative Disclosure

Financlal Risk Management

The Company has to manage various risks associated with the lending business, These risks Include liquidity risk, exchange risk, interest rate risk and
- ty risk. The Comp has entered Into interest rate swaps wherein it has converted floating rate linked to various benchmarks into fixed rate
rupee llabilities. The currency risk on ings is actively ged through currency swaps.

Measurement and Accounting

All derivative contracts are recagnised on the balance sheet and measured at fair vajue. Hedge accounting Is applied to all the derivative instruments as per
IND AS 109. Gain/less arising on account of fair value changes are recegnised In the Statement ef Profit and Loss to the extent of Ineffective portion of
hedge instruments and hedged items. The gains/losses of effective portion of hedge instrument are offset against gain/losses of hedged Items In Other
Comprehensive Income,

Movements in the Cash flow hedge reserves are as follows (As per Ind AS Financials)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2022 2021
Opening Balance - -
Credit/(Debit) in cash flow hedge reserves (52,82 -
Closing Balan {52.82) -

Quantitative Disclosure

Particulars Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives

(i)  Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount}

Far hedging 4,752.48 4,752.48
(if) Marked to Market Positions

Asset (+) = 23.81

Liability (-} (94.19) -
(ili) Credit Exposure {94.19) 23.61
(iv) Unhedged Exposures - -

VI. Disclosures relating to securitisation
The Company does nat have any securitised assets as at March 31, 2022 as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

VII. Details of financial assets sold to securitisation /rec uction pany for asset reconstruction
The Company has not seld any financial assets to secur Jrec for asset reconstruction during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

VIII. Details of assignment transaction undertaken by applicable NBFCs
The Company has not undertaken any assignment transaction during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Ix. Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased /sold
Disclosures pursuant te RBI Natification - ABI /DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51 /21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021

|Particulars To Asset To

NPA SMA NPA SHA
HNumber of accounts =] = 36 -
Aggregate principal ding of loans tr {Rs. In Lakhs) = - 512.72 -
‘Weighted average residual tenar of the loans transferred (in years) - - 1.02
Net book value of leans transferred (at the time of transfer) (Rs, In Lakhs) - 2 559,10 -
Aggregate consideration (Rs. In Lakhs) = o 250,00 -

The Company has transferred stressed loans having net book value of 2 559,10 lakhs during the year, The Campany has reversed provisien for impairment loss of 7 390.04
lakhs by netting off from provislon for impairment loss created during the year and booked loss of # 290,46 Lakhs {Refer nate 32) on derecognition of financials assets to the
statement of prefit and less account.
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®. Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022

Particulars 1 day to B days to 15 days to Owver 1 month Owver 2 months Over 3 Over 6 months Over lyear to Owver 3 years Over 5 years Taotal
7 days 14 days 30/31 days to to 3 months  months to 6 to 1 year 3 years 1o 5 years
2 months months
Liabilities
Debt securities » 0 945,97 143.28 8,163.73 3,660.36 5,648.74 18,721.66 1,847.80 - 39,131.54
Borrowlngs 5,511.16 10,872.04 27,036.67 9,312.19 H,728.17 16,715.49 28,178.46 49,190.29 6,802.72 - 162,347.19
{other than debt securities)
Total 5,511.16 10,872.04 27,9864 9,455,47 16,891.90 20,375.85 33,827.20 67,911.95 8,650.52 - 201,478.73
Assels
Loans glven G,848.68 5,099.36 16,268.72 43,495.92 57,489.15 85,195.28 13,402.69 22,228.04 2,580.80 403,25 254,011.89
Investment {net) 30,001.50 283.71 284,55 261.07 720.69 1,276.01 520.56 - - 33,648,09
Total 36,850.18 5,099.36 16,552.43 43,780.47 57,750.22 86,915.97 14,678.70 23,048.60 2,580.80 403.25 287,659.98
XI, Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect
Category As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Direct Exposure
{a) Residential Mortgages
Lending fully secured by mertgages on residential property that is or will be occupled by the berrower ar that Is rented. 4,691.75 2,415,01
(b) Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office buildings, retail space, multiple purpose commercial premises, 3,540.95 1,390.68
multi-family resi 1 bl ultk commercial p; . Industrial or warehouse space, hatels, land acqulsition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would not include non-fund based (NFB) limits,
{c) Investments In Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and othersecuritised exposures:
{1) Resldential Mortgages # 3
(1} Commercial Real Estate -
Total exposure to real estate sector 8,232.70 3,805.69

XII. Exposure to Capital Market

The Company does not have any expesure to capital market as at March 31, 2022 as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

XIII, Disclosure for "DETAILS OF SINGLE BORROWER LIMIT {SBL) / GROUP BORROWER LIMIT (GBL) EXCEEDED BY THE NBFC" need to be made
The Company does not exceeded any customer borrower limit as at Mareh 31, 2022 as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

XIV. Details of financing of parent company's products
The Company has no product categary where the customer s mandated to use the credit facility to buy products from a specific supplier {including the parent). Additionally,
the parent Is nelther a manufacturer nor does It sell products under its own brand, hence reperting on financing of parent Company's products is not applicable,

XV. Miscellancous

{2} Reserve Bank of India - Registration Number : N-14.03380
{b) Credit Rating
{Rating As at |Rating As at

Apsirisnent |Rating Agency |yarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non convertible debentures ICAA Ltd ICRA A+ BBE+ Stable
Commercial paper ICRA Ltd ICRA Al+ A2+
Bank Lines ICRA Ltd ICRA A+ BBB+ Stable
Principal Protected Market Linked Debenture ICRA Ltd FP-MLD ICRA A+ FP-MLD BBB+ Stable
Other Instruments ICRA Ltd - A-{CE} Stable
Mon convertible debentures ICRA Ltd - A-{CE} Stable
Bank Lines CARE CARE A+ BBE+
Non convertible debentures CARE CARE A+ BBB+
Bank Lines CRISIL CRISIL AfStable -
Principal Protected Market Linked Debenture CRISIL CRISIL PP MLD A r /Stable =
Non canvertible debentures CRISIL CRISIL A/Stable - N

{£) No penalties have been levied by any regulater during the year as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2022 as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

XVI. Additional Disclosures

(a} Provisions and C J
Break up of and Conti ies'shown under the head expenditure in statement of Profit and Loss:
Particul
e s | s
March 31, 2022 2021
690,33 713.28

Impairment allowance on loans
Impairment allowance on investment 6.15 B8.43
Impairment on account of COVID-19 - 245.50
Provision made towards Income tax 2,709.78 1,538.43

XVIL. C of its, Ad E and NPAs

{a) Concentration of Advances

Particulars
Asat N:r::;l,
March 31, 2022 2021
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 52,721.56 34,722.14

Percentage of Advances to twel largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 20,76% 25.60%
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{b) Concentration of Exposures

Particulars As at
Juat March 31,
v
March 31, 2022 2021
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers fcustomers 52,989.37 37,954.76
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest FE: to Total Exp 20.86% 27.98%
of the NBFC on borrawers / ¢
{c) Concentration of NPAs
|Particulars As at
As at
March 31,
March 31, 2022 2021
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 984.51 435.92
(d) Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector
5. Sector As at
As at
M h 31,
No March 31, 2022 ';;: g
{1)__|Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
(i) |MSME 31% 1.53%
{lil} |Corporate barrowers .19% 0.43%
{iv) |Services L00% 0.00%
(v) _|Unsecured personal loans .00% 0,00%;
{wi}_|Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
(vli} | Other personal loans 0,00% 0.00%
MVIIL Movement of NPAs
Particulars As at M:r::tn
-
March 31, 2022 2021
(i1 MNet NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.43% 0.50%
£y Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{a)|Opening balance 1.672.30 B832.16
b} Additions during the year 1,941.55 1,153.07
<} Reductions during the year 1,004.01 312.93
(d]| Closing balance 2,609.84 1,672.30
(i) Movement of Net NPAS
{a}|Opening balance 684.27 257.51
(b} |Additions during the year 933.83 608.35
{c)|Reductions during the year 517.14 181.59
{d}|{Closing balance 1,100 684,27
{ provisions for NPAs (excludi rovislons on stan 1
{a]|Opening balance 988.03 574.64
(b]|Provisions made during the year 1,007.72 544.73
{c) | Write write-back of excess Isions 486.87 131.534
{d}|Closing balance 1,506.88 988.03

XIX. The Company does nat have any joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad as at March 31, 2022 as well as In the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

XX.  The Company does not have any SPVs sponsored as at March 31, 2022 as well as in the previous year ended March 31, 2021,

XXI. Disclosure of Complaints

(a) Custemer Complaints

|Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022| March 31, 2021
No. of complaints pending at the beqinning of the year nil Hil
No. of complaints received during the year 11 10
HNo. of complaints redressed during the year 11 10
Mo. of complaints pending at the end of the year il il
XXII. Disclosure of restructured accounts as required by the NBFC Master Directions issued by RBI
Type of Restructuring-Others* Standard Loss Total
Restructured accounts as on 1 Aprll 2021 No. of borrowers - 14
Amount outstanding 81.49 - 205.86
Fresh restructuring during the year® No. of borrowers - 16
Amaunt outstanding B651.B6 - 651.86
Upgradi tor ed categary during the FY No. of borrowers - - -
Amount outstanding - - -
Write-offs/Settlements/Recoveries of restructured accounts No. of barrowers - [
during the FY Amaunt outstanding 32.44 - B9.83
Restructured accounts as on 31 March 2022 No. of borrowers - 24
Amount outstanding 700.91 = 767.89

*Since the disclosure of restructured advance ACCOUNT pertains to section 'Others’, the First two sections, namely, "Under COR Mechanism’ and ‘Under SME debt Restructuning Mechanism’
as per Format prescribed In the guidelines are naot included above,
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49 Disclosue as required in terms of RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

Details of i irment loss all e reserve as at 31 March 2022: -
Asset Classification as per RBI Asset Gross Carrying Loss Allowances |Net Carrying Provisions Difference between
Norms classification as | Amount as per Ind (Provisions) as Amount required as per Ind AS 109
per Ind AS 109 AS required under Ind IRACP norms provisions and
AS 109 IRACP norms
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 253,116.40 1,304.38 | 251,812.02 1,029.47 274.91
Stage 2 2,126.76 249.87 1,876.89 23,51 226.36
Subtotal 255,243.16 1,554,25 | 253,688.91 1,052.98 501.27
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 2,040.67 1,026.90 1,013.77 204.07 822.83
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 523.92 436.73 87.19 523.92 (87.19)
1to 3 years Stage 3 45.25 45.25 - 45.25 -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - = =
Subtotal for doubtful 569.17 481.98 B87.19 568.17 {87.19)
Loss Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal for NPA 2,609.84 1,508.88 1,100.96 773.24 735.64
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - - s =
commitments, etc. which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning Stage 2 = = = =
(IRACP) norms Stage 3 & B = a =
Stage 1 253,116.40 1,304.38 251,812.02 1,029.47 274.91
Total Stage 2 2,126.76 249.87 1,876.89 23.51 226.36
Stage 3 2,609.84 1,508.88 1,100.96 773.24 735.64
Total 257,853.00 3,063.13 | 254,789.87 1,826.22 1,236.91
Details of impairment loss allowance reserve as at 31 March 2021: -
Asset Classification as per RBI Asset Gross Carrying Loss Allowances |Net Carrying Provisions Difference between
Norms classification as | A t as per Ind (Provisions) as Amount required as per Ind AS 109
per Ind AS 109 AS required under Ind IRACP norms provisions and
AS 109 IR
(1) (2) 3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 132,345.45 1,060.34 131,285.11 532.90 527.44
Stage 2 4,390.74 324.43 4,066.31 17.56 306.87
Subtotal 136,736.19 1,384.77| 135,351.42 550.46 834.31
MNon-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,244.17 631.20 612.97 130.60 500.60
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 428.13 356.83 71.30 428,13 (71.30)
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - =
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal for doubtful 428.13 356.83 71.30 428.13 (71.30)
Loss Stage 3 5 = -
Subtotal for NPA 1,672.30 988.03 684.27 558.73 429.30
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 = - - - -
commitments, etc, which are in the Stage 2 = = - - -
scope of Ind AS 1 U ver: Stage 3 g - - - -
Subtotal - = = = -
Stage 1 132,345.45 1,060.34 131,285.11 532.90 527.44
Total Stage 2 4,390.74 324.43 4,066.31 17.56 306.87
Stage 3 1,672.30 988.03 684.27 558.73 429.30
Total 138,408.49 2,372.80| 136,035.69 1,109.19 1,263.61

Details of accounts that are past due beyond 90 days but not treated as impaired

Number of accounts

Total amount
outstanding as on
31 March 2022

Overdue amount
as on 31 March
2022

Loss Allowances
(Provisions) as on
31 March 2022

101

2,609.84

1,887.60

1,508.88

49.1 Disclosure as required in terms of RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

Disclosure as required in terms of RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109,/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

Details of accounts that are past due beyond 90 days but not treated as impaired

Number of accounts Total amount Overdue Loss All 1ce:
outstanding as on | as on 31 March (Provisions) as on

31 March 2021 2021 31 March 2021
106 1,672.30 1,203.98 988.03




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)

50 Disclosure in terms of RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/17 DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 07 April 2021 on Asset Classification and Income

Recognition following the expiry of COVID-19 regulatory package

In accordance with the RBI Circular no. RBI/2021-22/17 DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 07 April 2021, during the financial year 2020-21 the company has
refunded/adjusted amount of ¥ 19.64 Lakhs to its borrowers, which was initially charged as Interest on Interest amount during the moratorium Period of 01 March 2020
to 31 August 2020,

The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide its notification dated October 23, 2020, had announced a scheme for COVID-19 Relief for grant of ex-gratia payment
of difference between compound Interest and simple interest for six months to borrowers in specified loan accounts ("the Scheme"), as per the eligibility criteria and
other aspects specified therein and irrespective of whether moratorium as per RBI regulatory package was avalled or not. The Company had implemented the Scheme

and credited the accounts of or remitted amounts to the eligible borrowers as per the Scheme, amounting to # 19.64 lakhs, The Company has filed its revised
supplementary claim for ¥ 19.64 lakhs for the ex-gratia with State Bank of India on September 23, 2021, as per the Scheme. Subsequently, the Company has received

7 19.64 lakhs in the month of December 2021,

51 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(a) Gross amount required to be spent 59.20 23.54
(b) Amount spent: - =
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset % =
60.00 23.60

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year
(d) Total of previous years shortfall

(c} Administrative expenses

Nature of CSR activities:

Social welfare activities such as free education for unprivileged children; adult education, protection, promotion & advancement of
women, children, old-aged, handicapped, orphans and widows.

52 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:-

As at'March 31, As at 'March 31,
2022 2021

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year; -

(b) The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end

of the year;

{c) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the _ .

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year;

{d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without - -
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;
{e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year; and - g
(f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small - -
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED

Particulars

i t in Schedul III) to the companies act, 2013 dated 24th March 2021

III (Divisi

53 Disclosure in compliance with
(i) The Company has not entered any transactions with companies that were struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act,

(if) The Company is in compliance with number of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017

(iii) During the year, no scheme of arrangements in relation to the Company has been approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, aforesaid disclosure are not applicable, since there were no transaction.

(iv) The Company does not have any transactions which were not recorded in the books of accounts, but offered as income during the year in the income tax assessment.

(v) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(vi) Ratios
Particulars Computation As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) Total Net owned funds / 48.38% 32.32%
Adjusted value of funded risk
assets on balance sheet items

(b) Tier I CRAR Total Net owned funds/Adjusted 47.99% 31.34%
value of funded risk assets on
balance sheet items

{c) Tier 11 CRAR ECL Stage-I provision/Adjusted 0.38% 0.98%
value of funded risk assets on
balance sheet items

(d) Liguidity Coverage Ratio Current assets/Current liabilities 2.48 2.01




OXYZO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Lakhs of ¥ unless otherwise stated)
54 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBl /DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.,51 /21.04.048/2021-22 dated 24 September 2021
(a) The company has not transfer any standard loans through assignment during the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
(b) The company has not acquired any loans through assignment during the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

(c) Details of stressed loans transferred during the financial year ended 31 March 2022,

Particulars To Asset Reconstruction Companies To permitted transferees
NPA SMA NPA SMA

Mumber of accounts - - 36 -

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred {# In Lakhs) g - 512.72 =

Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred (in years) - - 1.02

Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) (¥ In Lakhs) - - 559.10 -

= " 250.00 £

Aggregate consideration (% In Lakhs)

(d) During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company did not transfer any stressed loans.

(e) The Company has transferred stressed loans having net book value of  559.10 lakhsduring the year, The Company has reversed provision for impairment loss of ¥
390.04 lakhs by netting off from provision for impairment loss created during the year and booked loss of 7 290.46 Lakhs on derecognition of financials assets to the

profit and loss account.
55 The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
56 The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current and previous financial year.

57 The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company did not have any
long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses need to be provided as required under any law / accounting

standards.
58 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

59 There were no disputed dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax and Income tax which have not been deposited.

60 Contingent liabilities and commitments
The Company has no contingent liabllity and commitment as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

61 The Code on Social Security 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette on September 29, 2020, The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be
notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact, if any, of the change will be assessed and accounted in the period in which said code becomes effective and the

rules formed thereunder are published.

62 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classified to confirm to the figures of the current year.

63 Pursuant to RBI Circular DOR.STR.REC.85/21.04.048/2021-22 dated February 15,2022 related to extension of Para 10 with respect to upgradation of account classified
as NPA of Circular DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22 dated November 12, 2021 , the company has opted for the deferment till September 30,2022 to put in place
the necessary system to implement/ further strengthen.

64 The above financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 26 May 2022.
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